# **Ryde Hunters Hill District Hockey Club** Annual Report 2019



# **Table of Contents**

Ryde Hunters Hill District Hockey Club Inc	3
Office Bearers for 2019 Season	4
Award Winners	5
Club President's Report	6
Financial Report	
Women's President's Report	
Men's President's Report	
Juniors' President's Report	17
Coaching Director	21
Sponsorship Director	23
Social Director	24
Facilities Director	25
Women's Masters Report	26
Men's Masters Reports	
Team Reports – Women's	
Team Reports – Men's	
Women's, Men's and Juniors' Results	45
Women's and Men's Records	61

# Ryde Hunters Hill District Hockey Club Inc.

1950-53Hugh Cullen*1987Rae Morris1954-59Harold Gralton1989-93Una Mansell1960Robert Bruce1989-93Una Mansell1960Robert Bruce1987-74David Niven19771971-72Rod ArmstrongPAST TREASURERS1973-74David Niven1977Mick Goodwin/ John Rock1977Ron Jones1978John Rock1977Ron Jones1979-80Terry Cox1978Howard Campey1981-82Phil Retford1979.80Peter Buckham1983-84Phil Parsons1983-84Paul Stapleton1986-88David Hanna1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1994Charles CallejaLIFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1977-80Graham CoxKeith Jeffery*Terry CoxPAST SECRETARIESHugh Cullen*Terry Reece1977-80Graham CoxGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1979-80Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1979-80Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraMaurice Dawson	PAST PRESIDENTS		DASTWO		SIDENTS (pro1003)	
1954-57Arthur Young*1988Lyn Cullen1958-59Harold Graton1889-93Una Mansell1960Robert Bruce1889-93Una Mansell1961-70Gough Young*1977Nick Goodwin/ John Rock1971-72Rod Armstrong1977Mick Goodwin/ John Rock1973-74David Niven1977Mick Goodwin/ John Rock1977Ron Jones1978John Rock1978Howard Campey1981-82Phil Retford1978.0Peter Buckham1983-84Phil Parsons1981-82Graham Cox1985Pat Keating1983-84Paul Stapleton1986-88David Hanna1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1993Jeff McEwenIIFE MEMBERS1994Charles CallejaLIFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1997-80Graham CoxKeith Jeffery*Terry Cox1977-78Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Goaharn Cox1979-80Graham CoxColin Cullen *Yudy Goosakoff1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJudy Riven Warren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJudy Riven Warren Campey*1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJudy Goosakoff1979-90Steve MerchantMaurice DawsonJudy Riven Warren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJudy Goosakoff <td></td> <td></td> <td colspan="2"></td> <td colspan="2"></td>						
1958-59Harold Gralton1989-93Úna Mansell1960Robert Bruce1987-93Úna Mansell1961-70Gough Young*PAST TREASURERS1973-74David Niven1977Mick Goodwin/ John Rock1975-76Bob Reeves*1978John Rock1977Ron Jones1979-80Terry Cox1978Howard Campey1981-82Phil Retford1979-80Peter Buckham1986-88David Hanna1983-84Paul Stapleton1986-88David Hanna1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1993Jeff McEwenIFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1997-78Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1977-78Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1978-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1983-80Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonKeith Thompson*1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonAndrew Ramsay19						
1960Robert Bruce1961-70Gough Young*1971-72Rod Armstrong1971-72Rod Armstrong1973-74David Niven1975-76Bob Reeves*1977Ron Jones1977Ron Jones1978Howard Campey1981-82Phil Retford1983-84Paul Stapleton1985-92Maurice Dawson1994Charles Calleja1995-96Maurice Dawson1997-80Glen Castensen1997-80Glen Castensen1998-96Maurice Dawson1997-86Glen Castensen1997-86Glen Castensen1997-87Gough Young*1997-88Glen Castensen1997-89Glen Castensen1997-80Graham Cox2017-Glen Castensen1997-77Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen Castensen1977-78Maurice Dawson1978-80Graham Cox1977-78Maurice Dawson1978-90Steve Merchant1984-85David Modra1984-85David Modra1984-85David Modra1984-85David Modra1985-90Steve Merchant1987-90Steve Merchant1997-91Ken Campbell1994-96Micheal Gunner1994-96Micheal Gunner1994-96Micheal Gunner1994-96Micheal Gunner1994-96Micheal Gunner1994-96Micheal Gunner </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>						
1961-70Gough Young*1971-72Rod ArmstrongPAST TREASURERS1973-74David Niven19771975-75Bob Reeves*19781977Ron Jones1978.81978Howard Campey1981-821978.4Peter Buckham1983-841981-82Graham Cox19851983-84Paul Stapleton1986-881994Charles Calleja1896-1995-96Maurice Dawson1989-1994.4Charles CallejaLIFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*1997-88Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*1997-98Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*1997-80Graham CoxKeith Jeffery*1997-97Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*1997-98Glen CastensenGough Young*1997-97Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*1977-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid Niven1983David ModraMaurice Dawson1984-85David ModraMaurice Dawson1984Graham CoxColin Cullen1977-78Maurice DawsonJoe Sakoff1977-78Maurice DawsonJoe Sakoff1977-80Graham CoxColin Cullen1984-85David ModraMaurice Dawson1984-85David ModraMaurice Dawson1986Graham Co			1000-00	ona mana		
1971-72Rod ArmstrongPAST TREASURERS1973-74David Niven1977Mick Goodwin/ John Rock1975-76Bob Reeves*1978John Rock1977Ron Jones1979-80Terry Cox1978Howard Campey1981-82Phil Retford1979-80Peter Buckham1983-84Phil Parsons1981-82Graham Cox1985Pat Keating1983-84Paul Stapleton1986-88David Hanna1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1993Jeff McEwenILFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonAthur Young*Ron Vine1997-98Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenKeith Jeffery*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantHugh Culles*Terry Reece1983Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1984-96Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1985-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1984-85David ModraBary Micheal GunnerJenny Dawson198						
1973-74David Niven1977Mick Goodwin/ John Rock1975Bob Reeves*1978John Rock1977Ron Jones1978John Rock1977Ron Jones1978John Rock1978Howard Campey1981-82Phil Retford1979-80Peter Buckham1983-84Phil Parsons1981-82Graham Cox1985Pat Keating1983-84Paul Stapleton1986-88David Hanna1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1993Jeff McEwenIFF MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonArthur Young*Ron Vine1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1977-78Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox1979-80Graham CoxKeith Jeffery*Terry Cox1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1986Graham CoxColin Cullen*Phil Retiord1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1991-92Micheal GunnerJohn John Soth AMMarnee McKay1993 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td colspan="3"></td></td<>						
1975-76Bob Reeves*1978John Rock1977Ron Jones1979-80Terry Cox1978Howard Campey1981-82Phil Retford1979-80Peter Buckham1983-84Phil Parsons1981-82Graham Cox1985Pat Keating1983-84Paul Stapleton1986-88David Hanna1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1993Jeff McEwen1989-Andrew Ramsay1994Charles CallejaLIFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox1999-17Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1997-88Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Terry Cox1977.78Maurice DawsonKeith Jeffery*Terry Reece1977.78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1993Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerJeff McEwenJohn Cullen1994-96Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1		0			dwin/ John Rock	
1977Ron Jones1979-80Terry Cox1978Howard Campey1981-82Phil Retford1979-80Peter Buckham1983-84Phil Parsons1981-82Graham Cox1985Pat Keating1983-84Paul Stapleton1986-88David Hanna1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1993Jeff McEwen1986-88David Hanna1995-96Maurice DawsonJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1999-16Maurice DawsonArthur Young*Ron Vine1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxKeith Jeffery*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1978-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1984-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1984-85David HannaGeng AskoffMatt McKay1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-93Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen1994-96Micheal GunnerRoy DavisJohn Cullen1993Micheal GunnerRoy DavisGoos			-			
1978Howard Campey1981-82Phil Retford1979-80Peter Buckham1983-84Phil Parsons1981-82Graham Cox1985Pat Keating1983-84Paul Stapleton1986-88David Hanna1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1993Jeff McEwen1989-Andrew Ramsay1994Charles CallejaLIFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonArthur Young*Ron Vine1997-98Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenKeith Jeffery*Terry CoxPAST SECRETARIESHugh Culler*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1978-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1981-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerGary McKayDavid Goosakoff1994-96Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-91Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2004-09Micheal GunnerJohn Booth AMMarnee		200				
1979-80Peter Buckham1983-84Phil Parsons1981-82Graham Cox1985Pat Keating1983-84Paul Stapleton1986-88David Hanna1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1993Jeff McEwen1989-Andrew Ramsay1994Charles CallejaLIFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonArthur Young*Ron Vine1997-98Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox2017-Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox2017-Glen CastensenKeith Jeffery*Terry CoxPAST SECRETARIESHugh Cullen*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1993Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKer Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMicheel Giaquinto2017-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2015-16Jacqui HerronBrad ParkesGlen Castensen </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>						
1981-82Graham Cox1985Pat Keating1983-84Paul Stapleton1986-88David Hanna1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1993Jeff McEwen1989-Andrew Ramsay1994Charles CallejaLIFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonArthur Young*Ron Vine1997-98Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenKeith Jeffery*Terry CoxPAST SECRETARIESHugh Cullen*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1978-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMicheel Giaquinto2001-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee M						
1983-84Paul Stapleton1986-88David Hanna1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1993Jeff McEwen1989-Andrew Ramsay1994Charles CallejaLIFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonArthur Young*Ron Vine1997-98Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenKeith Jeffery*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2017-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2015-16Jacqui HerronBrad ParkesGlen Castensen						
1985-92Maurice Dawson1989-Andrew Ramsay1993Jeff McEwenII </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>						
1993Jeff McEwen1994Charles CallejaLIFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonArthur Young*Ron Vine1997-98Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenKeith Jeffery*Terry CoxPAST SECRETARIESHugh Cullen*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1986-Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1993Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMicheal Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonBrad Parkes2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton		•				
1994Charles CallejaLIFE MEMBERS1995-96Maurice DawsonArthur Young*Ron Vine1997-98Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenKeith Jeffery*Terry CoxPAST SECRETARIESHugh Cullen*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGoug Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton			1909-	Andrewit	anisay	
1995-96Maurice DawsonArthur Young*Ron Vine1997-98Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenKeith Jeffery*Terry Cox <b>PAST SECRETARIES</b> 1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David ModraGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton		-		IRERS		
1997-98Glen CastensenJoe Barrett*Gordon Fox1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenKeith Jeffery*Terry CoxPAST SECRETARIESHugh Cullen*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton				-	Ron Vine	
1999-16Maurice DawsonAllen Reece*Graham Cox2017-Glen CastensenKeith Jeffery*Terry CoxPAST SECRETARIESHugh Cullen*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton						
2017-Glen CastensenKeith Jeffery*Terry CoxPAST SECRETARIESHugh Cullen*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton				-	••••••	
PAST SECRETARIESHugh Cullen*Terry Reece1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1993Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1994-96Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton						
1977-78Maurice DawsonGough Young*Judy Goosakoff1979-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonFamilton	-					
1979-80Graham CoxKeith Thompson*Rae Morris1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton		_				
1981-82Phil BesanvalleDavid NivenWarren Campey*1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal Gunner/ John PhilipGary McKayDavid Goosakoff1994-96Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton	1979-80	Graham Cox				
1983David ModraMaurice DawsonJulie Reid1984-85David HannaGwen SullmanAndrew Ramsay1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton		Phil Besanvalle			Warren Campey*	
1986Graham CoxColin CullenPhil Retford1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal Gunner/ John PhilipGary McKayDavid Goosakoff1994-96Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton	1983	David Modra				
1987-90Steve MerchantPhillip GoosakoffMatt McKay1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal Gunner/ John PhilipGary McKayDavid Goosakoff1994-96Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott FamiltonScott Familton	1984-85	David Hanna			Andrew Ramsay	
1991-92Micheal GunnerJenny DawsonKen Campbell1993Micheal Gunner/ John PhilipGary McKayDavid Goosakoff1994-96Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott Familton	1986	Graham Cox			Phil Retford	
1993Micheal Gunner/ John PhilipGary McKayDavid Goosakoff1994-96Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott Familton	1987-90	Steve Merchant	Phillip Goosakoff		Matt McKay	
1994-96Micheal GunnerRay PhelpsSteve Merchant1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott Familton	1991-92	Micheal Gunner			Ken Campbell	
1997-01Ken CampbellRon JonesMicheal Gunner2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott Familton	1993	Micheal Gunner/ John Philip			David Goosakoff	
2002-03Peter MurrayJeff McEwenJohn Cullen2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott Familton	1994-96	Micheal Gunner			Steve Merchant	
2004-09Micheal GunnerPeter CoxMichelle Giaquinto2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott Familton	1997-01	Ken Campbell	Ron Jones		Micheal Gunner	
2010-12Gerald de WaalJohn Booth AMMarnee McKay2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott Familton	2002-03	Peter Murray	Jeff McEwen		John Cullen	
2013-14Scott FamiltonBrad ParkesGlen Castensen2015-16Jacqui HerronScott Familton		Micheal Gunner				
2015-16 Jacqui Herron Scott Familton		-			<b>,</b>	
				,		
			Scott Familton			
2017- Meg Smith	2017-	Meg Smith				

### **Office Bearers for 2019 Season**

PATRONS

John Booth AM Victor Dominello MP

#### EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

CLUB PRESIDENT: ADMINISTRATION DIRECTOR: FINANCE DIRECTOR: Glen Castensen Meg Smith Andrew Ramsay

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

MEN'S PRESIDENT: WOMEN'S PRESIDENT: JUNIORS' PRESIDENT: COACHING DIRECTOR: FACILITIES DIRECTOR: SPONSORSHIP DIRECTOR: SOCIAL DIRECTOR:

JUNIORS' CLUB CAPTAINS: WOMEN'S CLUB CAPTAINS:

MEN'S CLUB CAPTAINS: GENERAL CLUB CAPTAIN:

ADVISORY BOARD: **CANTEEN & UNIFORMS:** COACHING COORDINATOR (Juniors): COACHING COORDINATOR (Men's): COACHING COORDINATOR (Women's): CORPORATE OFFICE: IT MANAGER: EQUIPMENT OFFICER: MASTERS COORDINATOR (Men): MASTERS COORDINATOR (Women): NORTH AREA DELEGATE: **REGISTRATION COORDINATOR (Junior): RECORDS OFFICERS:** SOCIAL MEDIA COORDINATOR: WEBMASTER: UMPIRES COORDINATOR (Women's):

Dean Merchant Kate Cade Kirrily Pereira Larry McIntosh Phil Welsman Chris Coleman Kieron Arthur

Kaitlin Rushton, Sebastien Butler Mikaela Patterson, Kiona Nicholl, Sophie Leijer Kasia Nowakowski Billy Shaw, Nic McEwan, Steve Coombs, Nev Hanna Narian Singh

Charles Calleja, Jeff McEwen Alison Keogh Greg Findlay

Glen Castensen, Ben Craig Scott Familton Alison Keogh Mark Richard Pippa Quilty Meg Smith Alison Keogh Scott Familton / Michael Gunner David Moore Shaun Dobbin Shelley Tate

### **Award Winners**

#### **CLUB AWARDS - GENERAL**

Coach of the YearNikki BeatonBreakthrough Coach AwardMichael EnglishUmpire of the YearRiley KeoghClub Person of the Year (Gwen Sullman & Maurie Dawson Trophy)Bernard MooreRepresentative Player of the Year (Lukas McKay Trophy)Tom Craig

#### **CLUB AWARDS - WOMEN**

Womens Best & Fairest (Judy Goosakoff Trophy) Womens Leading Goal Scorer (Kirsten Pearce Trophy) Best and Fairest Female Goalkeeper Breakthrough Player Award

#### **CLUB AWARDS - MEN**

Men's Best and Fairest (Pop Reece Trophy) Men's Leading Goal Scorer (Colin Manning Trophy) Best and Fairest Male Goalkeeper Breakthrough Player Award

#### **BEST AND FAIREST - MASTERS**

Masters A Masters B Masters C Masters D Masters E

#### **BEST AND FAIREST - WOMEN**

First Grade Second Grade Third Grade Fourth Grade Fifth Grade Sixth Grade Seventh Grade

#### **BEST AND FAIREST - MEN**

First Grade Second Grade Third Grade Fourth Grade Fifth Grade Sixth Grade Black Sixth Grade White Seventh Grade Eighth Grade Ninth Grade Black Ninth Grade White Mikaela Patterson Abby Wilson (22) Caroline Oppedisano Lexie Pickering

Peter Corcoran Luke Watson (24) Riley Keogh Reghyn Harrison

Mark Ellis Mick Tweedie Mark Richard Charles Calleja Graham Newson

Mikaela Patterson Emma Jackson Sophie Parkes Kara Retford Melissa Armstrong Ceci Guerro Caroline Opedisano

Sam Gray Cameron Brown Darcy Keogh Peter Corcoran Mark Greaves Nick Edwards and Manuel de Miguel Liam Phelan Jackson Rickard Graham Symes Blake Young Steve Dunn

# **Club President's Report**

It continues to be a great honour and my absolute pleasure to be your Club President. The last 12 months have seen a number of memorable triumphs for the Club and our players both in the Sydney based competitions as well as on the representative stages. I would particularly like to thank our current and prior coaches and support staff for their hard work and significant contribution to these successes. Special congratulations to **Nikki Beaton**, her support team and players, and Coaching Director **Larry McIntosh** – for an outstanding **Women's 1<sup>st</sup> grade 2019 premiership**. Very inspirational to all.

Also, congratulations to all for being awarded the **Hockey NSW Community Club of the Year**. A wonderful achievement and acknowledgement by others of the great work we are all doing. Well done!

#### **Off-Field Team**

As I have said many times before the hardest working team in the Club is management. I would like to give a special shout-out thanks to our management team of **Kieron Arthur, Kate Cade, Chris Coleman, Larry McIntosh, Dean Merchant, Kirrily Pereira, Andrew Ramsay, Meg Smith, and Phil Welsman**.

We would also like to thank a number of others for their significant contribution via working groups and associated supporting roles including: Bubbles Arthur, Steve Besanvalle, Mark Butler, Seb Butler, James Lear, Charles Calleja, Alice Calleja, Tim Collier, Tom Craig, Shaun Dobbin, Jess Dobbin, Steve Dunn, Scott Familton, Sophie Leijer, Bruce Farquharson, Greg Findley, David Goosakoff, Andrew Ramsay, Gary Goosakoff, Mick Gunner, Alison Keogh, Darcy Keogh, John Cullen, Stuart Farquharson, Kenny Campbell, Jeff McEwen, Matt McKay, Narian Singh, Dean Merchant, David Moore, Muz, Kiona Nicholl, Drew Parker, Pippa Quilty, Gina Rees, Mark Ellis, Bernard Moore, Kirsty O'Sullivan, Craig Shaw, WPT Shaw, Steve MacMillian, Mark Richard, Ben Willson, Andy Duggan, Shelley Tate, Mikaela Chops Patterson, and Maurie Dawson. Thank you all for your outstanding contributions and dedication.

Thanks also to our Club Captain: **Steve Coombs, Kiona Nicholl, Mikaela Patterson, Billy Shaw, Seb Butler, Nic McEwen, Neyif Hanna, Kaitlin Rushton, Kasia Nowakowski, Sophie Lleijer, and Narian Singh**. For those who aren't continuing in your role – we wish you the best and hope your return to assist the Club in another capacity when able.

With that said – I would particularly like to congratulate **Bernard Moore** for winning the highly prestigious **Gwen Sullman & Maurie Dawson Club Person of the Year Award** and equally, **Kaitlin Rushton** and **Sebastien Butle**r for winning the **Junior Club Person of the Year**. I thank them all for their significant contributions this year and many years of outstanding service.

#### **On-Field Season**

This season we fielded **36 teams** (ex-Minkies) across Women and Men's Seniors, Juniors and Masters. That is the most teams fielded by any Club in Sydney and again makes us one of the largest hockey clubs in Australia. I wish to sincerely congratulate and thank all the coaches, managers, assistants, umpires, coordinators, selectors, canteen staff, ball persons, general helpers and supporters – for without your major contributions and commitment throughout the season there would be no sport for us all to enjoy.

Massive congratulations to all the players who took the field this year. Well done to all the players who won awards with special mention to **Mikaela** "**Chops**" **Patterson** and **Peter Corcoran** for taking out the prestigious Judy Goosakoff and Pop Reece trophies respectively and the John Cullen Junior Player of the Year going to a well-deserved Lachlan Pereira.

This season of our **36 teams** (11 Men's, 7 Women's, 5 Masters and 13 Junior (ex 5 Minkey) competition we had:

• 25 or 69% (last season 66%) of teams across the entire Club make their respective finals

- Of those, **16** teams or **64%** (last season 68%) of the team in the finals or 44% (last season 46%) of total teams went on to make their Grand Final
- Of those, **12** or **75%** (last season 53% or 9 teams) of the teams that made their GF or **33%** (last season 24%) of our total teams went on to become **MAJOR premiers** (**6 Juniors** and **6 Seniors**).

I would particularly like to congratulate our Premiership winning teams on their outstanding season:

- 11 Panthers coached by Greg Findley and manager Chris Pope (minor & major premiers)
- 13 Panthers coached by Morgan Blamey and Tom Brown and manager Wendela Flokstra (minor & major premiers)
- U15 Panthers coached by Jack Cullen and assistant Reghyn Harrison and manager Duncan Taylor (minor & major premiers)
- U15 Tigers coached by Matt Edwards and assistant Simon Miller and manager Lauren Critchley (minor & major premiers)
- 17 Tigers coached by Teaj Sian and manager Bridget Robson (major premiers)
- 17 Lions coached and managed by Paul Levett (major premiers)
- Men's 8th grade, great premiership coached by Mark Richard
- Men's 6th grade for their dominating premiership coached by Craig Williams
- Men's 4th grade for their great season and Grand Final victory coached by Michael English
- Men's Master B for their remarkable Grand Final victory coached by Scott Familton
- Men's Master C for their remarkable Grand Final victory coached by Mark Richard.
- Women's 1st grade for their dominant season and Grand Final victory coached by Nikki Beaton and support from Gina Rees, Cecilia Blamey, Mick Gunner and Kirsty O'Sullivan.

I would also like to acknowledge the prior contribution of many others particularly past - coaches, players, managers and supporters that laid the foundation for these glorious premierships. Thank you.

#### **On-Field Representative - Elite**

It's been our finest year (and we thought last year was!) for representative hockey with some amazing achievements. It is great to see the Club's significant investment in coaching and player development over recent years translating into many of our players reaching elite levels. As a result, we had:

- Over 40 State representative players across the Club
- 8 players in u21s State Nationals Championships
- 10 players in the Senior HockeyOne State teams
- Numerous players in the **NSW Masters teams** at Nationals
- 2 players in the Australian Combined High Schools team
- 1 player in the National Futures Group
- 5 players in the National Junior u21s squad
- 4 players in Senior Australian Development Squad
- 1 player in the Australian Country team and a number in National Masters teams
- 1 player in Senior National Indoor team.
- 5 players in Senior National Teams.

Our elite players played throughout Australia and travelled the globe from India, South Africa, South America, Europe, UK, Japan, China and NZ. Congratulations to all of you. A good problem to have is it is now not practicable to name all of you in this opening report. However, I would like to make special mention of our current Senior national players, **Kirsten Pearce**, **Zoe Newman** (indoor), **Tim Brand**, **Tom Craig** and **Lachi Sharp**. The boys along with **Sam Gray** and **Hayden Dillon** won the inaugural HockeyOne tournament. Special mention for our three Kookaburras for winning the biggest hockey event of the year - **World Pro-league GOLD** in July. An amazing achievement.

Congrats also to all Junior, Seniors and Masters players who participated and won their respective State and National Championships with special mention to **John Cullen** for recently leading the NSW o55 Masters to victory in the Nationals in WA.

Finally, well done to **Tom Craig** taking out the Club's **Lukas McKay Representative Player of the Year Award**. It's well deserved with his outstanding year including: 27 matches, 8 goals, **FIH Pro League Champion Gold, 2018 Hockey World Cup Bronze, Oceania Cup Champion** and **India Series Win**.

#### **Special Mentions**

At the risk of forgetting to mention someone/something important (sorry if I do miss you) – I strongly believe the following warrant special mention:

- **Meg Smith** and **Andy Ramsay** for your hard work, massive commitment, support and care as part of the Club Executive. It's been a pleasure working together again this year as part of the Club's Executive Team.
- Andy Duggan for his outstanding work in developing the Keepers coaching program. Thanks for another great year.
- Nikki Beaton for an amazing 1<sup>st</sup> year at the Club guiding her team to a 1<sup>st</sup> grade premiership which was also acknowledge with her being awarded Club Senior Coach of the Year.
- **Dean Merchant** and **Mark Richard** with great leadership as respective Presidents of Men's Seniors and Men's Masters with the teams making the final in every division.
- Our new Breakthrough Award winners of Lexie Pickering (Women's Player), Reghyn Harrison (Men's Player) and Michael English (Coaching).
- **Kirrily Pereira** for her outstanding work and care as Junior President. It's the hardest job in the Club with over 230 children and 18 teams.
- To all our 14 **#PantherPride** recipients for 2019. Thank you all for your significant contributions to making our Club even greater.
- All the members (young and old) that got involved in our Working Bees this year. While often overlooked, these activities are so vital for the successful operation of your home ground Facility.
- **David Moore** for his outstanding work on promoting the Club and the sport of hockey on social media.
- Jack Cullen for being awarded the Junior Coach of the Year.
- Maurice Dawson Minkey Encouragement Award winner Charlotte Firth.
- Kirsten Pearce, Ben and Tom Craig, Sam Liles, Tim Brand and Lachi Sharp for your dedication to the Club from afar. Most times I know you are a long way away with a primary focus on national teams or OS priorities. However, please never underestimate our appreciation of your promotion of the Club and when able your appearances (whether that be a junior presentation event, coaching clinic or club match) when returning back in town. We also greatly appreciate your "behind the scenes" counsel during the year and your "chaperoning" of our debutants during the commencement of their respective representative journeys.
- **Kieron "Bubbles" Arthur** for his commitment to the Club, drive and inspirational work ethic and a great inaugural HockeyOne season with Tassie Tigers.
- David Moore and Kate Cade for their work on the new uniform project with the Club Captains.
- **Scott Familton** for his massive contribution and programming efforts on the Club's Registration and Record system.
- Jess Dobbin for her outstanding work as Club Administrator.
- Larry McIntosh, Nikki Beaton, Greg Findley, Dean Merchant, Tim Collier and others for their continued pursuit of excellence with our coaching development framework across the Club.
- Mark Butler for being the Junior teamapp guru, setting up all Juniors, guardians, coaches & managers and resolving user issues all year.
- Chris Coleman, Meg Smith, Bec Dawson, Jess Dobbin, Kieron "Bubbles" Arthur, Andrew Ramsay, Alison Keogh, Kirrily Pereira and team for organising Family Day, Junior Presentation, New Players, Trivia Night and the Senior Presentation Night. Some of our best events ever.
- Riley Keogh who was awarded Club Umpire of the Year.
- Maurie Dawson and Drew Parker for their continued work developing our youngest and newest members in the Minkey Development Programme.

#### Focus for 2020 and Beyond

I plan to seek re-election at this year's AGM (6 December) and do so under the same "platform" I outlined in the prior years of:

- 1. We are not just competing against other clubs but other sports;
- 2. A club with a home ground turf facility has many material advantages over those Clubs that don't;
- 3. Over the long term a club with a lack of juniors will not survive;
- 4. Having a winning culture is good for a club and its members;
- 5. Players (regardless of what grade they play, their age or how long they have been playing for) still desire to be better players and want to learn;
- 6. Coaches (regardless of what grade they coach, their age or how long they have been coaching for) still desire to be better coaches and want to learn;
- 7. Having successful 1st grades teams are good for members and the club;
- 8. Seeing fellow players develop into elite players and playing at the highest level is good for a club and its members;
- 9. Members desire to be part of something bigger than themselves and are drawn towards a culture that is transparent, inclusive, fair, non-discriminatory, profitable and social; and
- 10. The more people that regularly assist a club, the more enjoyable it is to be part of; the less personal opportunity cost there is for those actively involved; and the more sustainable that Club becomes.

#### **To Conclude**

Thank you for being a part of the Club. As mentioned, please don't wait for others to do the work and "heavy-lifting". Engage. Share the workload. Be part of the conversation and enjoy.

Special thanks to our Club Patrons for their continued support - John Booth AM of the "The Weekly Times" AND our Ryde State Member (and Minister for Customer Service), Victor Dominello. I thank our Federal Member John Alexander, Ryde Councillors Roy Maggio and Penny Pederson for their continued interest, care and support for the Club. Thanks also to David Thompson and his team at HNSW, and the NSW Office of Sport for their hard work and commitment to the future of hockey and our Club.

Special thanks to our Major sponsors **Momento Hospitality Group** (owner of the Governor Hotel) and **CDC NSW** (owners of Hillsbus). Many thanks to all of our "**Club Community Supporters**" particularly: Foxtel, Chatswood RSL, Hockey NSW, Brisbane Live, Just Hockey, Lunchtimes Legends, MC Hockey Skill Set, Plus Fitness Macquarie Park, Teams Sports, VetMed, Courtyard Marriott and **The Weekly Times**.

My final thanks and wishes are to the parents, partners, family, friends, lost loved ones and pets – who supported us during this season. I hope you and your family have a safe holiday season and a wonderful New Year. Thanks again for your participation, support and passion. If there is any aspect of this report, you would like to discuss further please don't hesitate to email me on glen.castensen@rydehockey.com.au

Next year the 2020 Summer Olympic Games marks a very exciting period for our elite players in the running for respective National teams. It's a wonderful feeling for all members to be a part of this journey and we look forward to the coming year with great excitement.

See you all in 2020! Yours in Hockey

Glen Castensen Club President

# **Financial Report**

Generally, most line items were as budgeted (i.e. as expected) with the additional comments being:

- On Income Overall increase up 6% as expected
  - Canteen (is 9% of total rev) ~ revenue up 12% due to the introduction of additional items & functions at the ground.
  - Grants (0%) ~ None applied for this year
  - Parking (19%) ~ revenue similar to last year
  - Social Functions (3%) ~ similar attendance at last year however still lower numbers to previous years.
  - Subscription fees (39%) ~ similar to last season as expected with no fee increase from last year
  - Turf hire (17%) ~ revenue down 4% due to lower Sunday usage during the season.
  - Sponsorship (9%) ~ revenue up significantly on last year as expected which was used to keep Subscription Fees the same as 2018.
- On Expenses Overall slight decrease as expected
  - Admin (is 2% of total expenses) ~ as expected.
  - Amortisation (10%) ~ as expected; current surface now written off.
  - Association fees (31%) ~ costs up 10% as expected
  - Coaching (12%) ~ figure as per last year and as expected
  - Equipment (2%) ~ lower than expected
  - Light. Power, Heating (8%) ~ slight increase as expected
  - Representative Subs (4%) ~ as expected with small increase
  - Repair and Maintenance (6%) ~ Lower than last year however there will be significant lighting repairs prior to next season around \$15,000 to \$20,000 we have deferred these from the end of this season as it will save in equipment hire costs.
  - Social events (3%) ~ costs as expected
  - Water (3%) ~ costs as expected.

As a result, a Net Profit was generated (approx. \$68k vs \$39k in 2018) as expected.

When reviewing the figures for the year, we provide the following commentary on the Balance Sheet:

- Generally, most items were as planned with the additional comments being:
- On Assets
  - Fixed assets remain unchanged (less the scheduled annual amortisation)
  - No new major assets
- On Debt
  - Credit Card Facility secured by a term deposit with CBA.

#### • Future Capex

- Field relocation plus additional field our contribution unknown currently
- Turf resurfacing, we would hope will not be needed prior to relocation
- o Some existing Clubhouse repairs still required subject to timing

Please note, the above commentary is presented here to provide a general summary and highlight significant items and/or outcomes. Approximates and rounding have been used. The above figures are not meant to represent all movements in the Profit and Loss and Balance Sheets.

To conclude, the FY2019 financial results were solid with the overall financial position of the Club as expected. Please note, the Auditor's Report will be handed out with the underlying financials. Furthermore, we are more than happy to discuss any aspect of this report, as well as answer any other financial questions at the AGM.

Kind Regards

Andrew Ramsay Finance Director

# Women's President's Report

In 2019, the Ryde fielded seven women's teams: five in the SWHL competition and two in the Sydney North competition. We had some great results and excellent improvements across all teams. Three teams made it into the SWHL finals series with RHH4 only missing out on a fourth spot by the narrowest of margins. RHH3 were knocked out in the semi-finals but came a commendable 3<sup>rd</sup> in the ML4 division giving the team a healthy chance of promotion back into ML3 for 2020. RHH5 were finalists and finished 2<sup>nd</sup> in the ML6 division. Finally, huge congratulations to Nikki Beaton and the 1<sup>st</sup> grade team on winning the SWHL Grand Final. A fantastic achievement for the Club.

All teams fought competitively and all players, coaches, and managers should be extremely proud of their efforts this season. We had a number of our players selected into representative teams up to international level and with our high-performance coaching team we aim to continue this success.

We set a number of goals for the Women's teams at the end of last season and the implementation of changes necessary to achieve these goals has not always been smooth sailing (especially in relation to cultural changes). We identified three key focus areas for 2019.

In terms of Culture, we wanted:

- To achieve better integration between all the grades (and between the men's and women's teams) including 1<sup>st</sup> grade assistance with lower grades, combined grade training, more Club days. 1<sup>st</sup> grade have helped across the Club including providing small group training to several women's teams and attending the games of other teams to provide support which is much appreciated. The 1<sup>st</sup> grade women have also been supporters for the Men's games on Saturday helping with greater integration between the Men's and Women's teams. Combined grade training has been hindered this year by the challenging training schedule. I began working on organising training schedule for 2020 in August which provides all teams, Men's, Women's and Junior's, with a 75-minute session each week ending no later than 9.15pm (except for a second session for the 1<sup>st</sup> grade squads). This is under strong consideration for the 2020 season. SHWL and SHL accepted all of our requested Club days which provided great opportunities for integration.
- weekly selections to reward performance, attendance and attitude. This has probably been one of the most difficult changes for both selectors, coaches and players to implement. Nikki Beaton has done an amazing job cultivating upcoming talent and including more lower grade players "off the bench". This has had a noticeable impact in strengthening the depth of talent able to play at a higher level, benefiting both 1<sup>st</sup> and 2<sup>nd</sup> grade. Acknowledgement should be given to the established 1<sup>st</sup> grade players for accepting and mentoring these 'up and coming' players and for those players being willing to train twice as hard for the chance to play a 1<sup>st</sup> grade game. We have had less success with implementation in the mid-level grades with a need for players to prioritise training and making a stronger commitment to attending training as non-attendance has a huge impact on game day. Cultural changes can take some time to implement and we will continue working towards achieving the benefits these changes will bring to the Club and players.
- to achieve greater representation of the women's teams on Facebook (this requires the women post themselves or email requests/photos to the appropriate person to post). This goal still requires greater commitment to posting by the women! Please post on the Facebook members only page to celebrate the achievements of your teammates.

In terms of Junior players, we wanted:

• to recognising the importance of identifying junior players and improving their transition into women's hockey. I believe that the Club has worked hard this year to identify these players across the grades. Where possible, both Junior players and those identified as having potential to play higher, have been offered additional training and the opportunity to play up. The importance of top-level seasoned players continuing to play and moving down the grades to provide stability and balance to the mid and lower grade teams was stressed. We struggled

again this year with a lack of these players. If you are a seasoned Ryde player (or if you know of one), please consider coming back and playing next season.

In terms of Coaching, we wanted:

• To continue to provide the women's teams with the best coaching support possible and to provide these coaches with coaching support. The aim was to get each team at least one session, incorporating both video and on-field coaching during the season from the Club's high-performance coaches. We also wanted to develop a high-level coaching course during the off-season. This season, we saw the introduction of the Ryde Coach and Athlete Development Plan which has been followed for some years, extremely successfully, in the Juniors. This Plan is intended to provide a framework for our coaches to follow. The Plan is nascent but I hope Women's will see as much improvement as has been seen in Juniors. We were extremely fortunate this year that both Larry and John Cullen were able to provide so much support to all of our teams and coaches. The Off-Season Individual Coaching course did not eventuate last season but we hope to have it up and running this year.

The mid-season performance reviews provided a great forum for players, coaches and managers to discuss progress and identify any areas for improvement during the season and we will look to continue these next season.

#### With thanks

I'd like to thank all of those who volunteered their time to help this season and there were many...

Our coaching team consisted of Nikki Beaton (1<sup>st</sup> grade), Stuart Farquharson and Erin Kelly (2<sup>nd</sup> grade), Liz May (3<sup>rd</sup> grade), Paul Levett (4<sup>th</sup> grade), Gavin Hughes (5<sup>th</sup> grade), Michael Gunner (6<sup>th</sup> grade), Mike Dahl (7<sup>th</sup> grade) and Dave Goosakoff (7<sup>th</sup> grade) with high performance coaching assistance provided by Larry Mackintosh and John Cullen and goalie coaching by Andy Duggan.

Our managers for the season were Cecilia Blamey and Michael Gunner (1<sup>st</sup> grade), Annelies Farquharson (2<sup>nd</sup> grade), Sophie Leijer (4<sup>th</sup> grade), Katie Duncan (5<sup>th</sup> grade), Felicity Jayne (6<sup>th</sup> grade), and the indomitable Ros O'Sullivan (7<sup>th</sup> grade). Our selectors included Mick Gunner, Nikki Beaton, Gina Rees, Stuart Farquharson, Trudy Green and Sharon Coutts.

Behind the scenes, Shelley Tate co-ordinated the women's umpires and Jess Dobbin provided invaluable admin support and is organising the Summer Hockey competition.

Please consider volunteering. There are many small tasks that require minimal time investment and we would love to have more of you involved. We were especially short of selectors this year, so please let me know if you can help out in March.

I look forward to seeing you all back for the 2020 season.

Kate Cade Women's President

#### Women's Results (Regular Season/Finals)

 $\begin{array}{l} 1^{st} \; Grade \; (ML1) - 2nd \; / \; Premiers \\ 2^{nd} \; Grade \; (ML2) - 9th \\ 3^{rd} \; Grade \; (ML4) - 2^{nd} \; / \; Lost \; in \; Elimination \; Final \\ 4^{th} \; Grade \; (ML5) - 5th \\ 5^{th} \; Grade \; (ML6) - 2nd \; / \; Lost \; in \; Preliminary \; Final \\ 6th \; Grade \; (Sydney \; North \; B) - 5th \\ 7^{th} \; Grade \; (Sydney \; North \; D) - 5th \end{array}$ 

#### **Women's Representative Honours**

#### National

Morgan Blamey - Australian U21s Development Squad Trudy Green - O45 Indoor, O55 shadow Amanda Meech - O40, O40 Indoor, Australian Defence Force Women's Team Zoe Newman - Australian U21 Indoor Russian tour Michaela Patterson - Australian Women's Development Squad Kirsten Pearce - New Zealand Black Sticks Abby Wilson - Australian Women's Development Squad

#### State

Morgan Blamey - NSW Pride, NSW U21 Ina Cadorin - NSW O35 Ellen Campey - NSW U18 Blues Macy Carrothers - NSW U18 Blues Trudy Green - NSW O55 Amanda Meech - NSW 040 Zoe Newman - NSW U21 Mikaela Patterson - NSW Pride Lexie Pickering - NSW Pride, NSW U21 Blues, NSW U18 Emily Waddell - NSW U21 Blues Abby Wilson - NSW Pride, NSW U21

AAP Macy Carrothers

# **Men's President's Report**

2019 was again another successful year across all Men's teams. In a performance rivalling that of 2018, we achieved the incredible feat of having ten teams make final appearances. This included all Sydney league teams reach the Grand finals (SL1-SL5). These results can only happen due to the hard work of all the coaches, managers and support staff and players throughout the season.

Special mentions must go to 4<sup>th</sup>, 5<sup>th</sup>, 7<sup>th</sup> who all finished Minor Premiers at the end of the regular season. Additionally, 7<sup>th</sup> Grade achieved the extremely rare PERFECT SEASON winning an incredible 18/18 matches during the regular season but unfortunately losing the Grand Final.

The finals series saw 1<sup>st</sup> grade bow out week 1 with 2<sup>nd</sup> and 3<sup>rd</sup> grade bowing out in the grand final qualifiers. Our final premier league side 4<sup>th</sup> Grade went on to win the Grand Final with a superb goal in extra time by Steven Besanvale. With 5 out of 5 Sydney League teams in the Grand Finals hopes were high on a clean sweep. Unfortunately, we struggled to convert the results with only SL2 Ryde White and SL4 becoming Champions; SL1, SL3 and SL5 all runners up on the day. Special mention to Matt Edwards scoring the final goal in 1 on 1 to clinch the SL1 title. This year we also had two teams in both SL2 and SL5. SL2 Black exceeded everyone's expectations by reaching the semi-finals. SL5 completed the season respectfully in seventh place.

I would like to take the time to thank all coaches and managers who took on roles this year and did a wonderful job. As we know, without these people the Club would not run. I certainly appreciate all the time and effort that goes into putting a team on the park each week, and they should all be commended for delivering time and time again. I would like to thank Neyif Hanna who was one of our club captains this year and helped me regularly behind the scenes with revolutionise and organisation of the lower grades throughout the season. Thanks also to Michael English who coached at a senior level for the first time and was able to win both the PL4 minor premiership and premiership.

#### Some Challenges and Goals

As a club we should always be striving to improve with the hope of continuing to be a successful club. As a president I would like to focus on some areas for next year's season.

- Focus on the new Premier League structure. I believe there are many young players that have transitioned from juniors to seniors that are now ready to take the club forward. With the new structure coming in next year, key themes loom as important including better attitudes towards training, consistency in the style of play, players striving to play in a higher grade, etc.
- Implement a training program for Sydney League teams. Create a 5-year plan to improve training for Sydney league teams that is not just drills and cones but fluid free flowing game situations that focus on particular skills that are relevant to the needs of teams.

I would like to thank everyone involved with the men's teams this year. Without help from everyone, my first year as president would not have gone as smoothly as it did. I hope everyone has a great off-season and comes back refreshed and focused for the 2020 season.

Dean Merchant Men's President

#### Men's Results (Regular Season/Finals)

 $\begin{array}{l} 1^{st} \mbox{ Grade (PL1)} - 5^{th} / \mbox{ Lost in Elimination Final} \\ 2^{nd} \mbox{ Grade (PL2)} - 5^{th} / \mbox{ Lost in Grand Final Qualifier} \\ 3^{rd} \mbox{ Grade (PL3)} - 2^{nd} / \mbox{ Lost in Lost in Grand Final Qualifier} \\ 4^{th} \mbox{ Grade (PL4)} - \mbox{ Minor Premiers } / \mbox{ Premiers} \\ 5^{th} \mbox{ Grade (SL1)} - \mbox{ Minor Premiers } / \mbox{ Runners Up} \\ 6^{th} \mbox{ Grade Black (SL2)} - 4^{th} / \mbox{ Lost in Preliminary Final} \\ 6^{th} \mbox{ Grade White (SL2)} - 2^{nd} / \mbox{ Premiers} \\ 7^{th} \mbox{ Grade (SL3)} - \mbox{ Minor Premiers } / \mbox{ Runners Up} \\ 8^{th} \mbox{ Grade (SL4)} - 2^{nd} / \mbox{ Premiers} \\ \end{array}$ 

9<sup>th</sup> Grade Black (SL5) 7<sup>th</sup> 9<sup>th</sup> Grade White (SL5) 4<sup>th</sup> / Runners Up

# Ryde Men's Representative Honours 2019 *National Honours*

Amauri Amat – Australian O/55 Kieron Arthur- National Development Squad Tim Brand – Australian Kookaburras Tom Brown – Burras tour to Madrid Tom Craig – Australian Kookaburras Hayden Dillon – National Development Squad Michael Dillon – Australian Country Team Mark Ellis – Australian O/50 Sam Gray – National Junior Squad, Burras tours to Madrid and Malaysia Phil Retford – Australian O/60 Lachlan Sharp – Australian Kookaburras

#### State Honours

Amauri Amat - NSW O/55 Kieron Arthur - Tassie Tigers Tim Brand - NSW Pride Tom Brown - NSW U21 State Team Glen Castensen - NSW 0/50 Lachlan Cope - NSW U18 State Team Tom Craig – NSW Pride John Cullen - NSW 0/55 Hayden Dillon - NSW Pride Mark Ellis - NSW O/50 Stuart Farquharson - NSW O/50 Sam Gray - NSW Pride, NSW U21 State Team Mark Greaves - NSW O/50 Jaylen Harrison – U15 Blues Team Lachlan Pereira – NSW U18 Blues Team Jack Pickering – NSW U21 Blues Team Phil Retford – NSW O/60 Lachlan Sharp - NSW Pride Teaj Sian - NSW O/50 Blues Mark Studd - NSW 0/60 Graham Symes - NSW O/50 Blues Evan Watson – NSW O/50

#### **AAP Selection Honours**

Lachlan Cope Lachlan Howard Lachlan Pereira Rhys Williams Liam Phelan

# **Juniors' President's Report**

2019 - what a season! Over 230 kids in 13 junior teams & 5 Minkey teams took to the fields this year to play some outstanding hockey. We welcomed many new players to the club this year, some moving from other clubs and some from interstate. We also had a number of players come and try hockey for the first time in every age group, hopefully they enjoyed their experience! The minkeys showed some great basic skills, improving each week and they looked like they were having fun doing it. Of our 13 junior teams. 9 made it through to the semi-finals, 6 to grand finals and we won all 6 ... an awesome effort from everyone involved! The development of the teams during the season was great to watch and the kids all seemed to be enjoying themselves both at training and games.

Once again it was a successful year, measured not only by results but also by increased levels of engagement by a wider group of players and families. These factors were significant contributors to the club winning the NAJHA Club Championship. This is the fifteenth time the Club has claimed this title in the last sixteen years.

Congratulations to the 11 Panthers, 13 Panthers, 15 Panthers, 15 Tigers, 17 Tigers and 17 Lions for exciting grand final wins this year. They worked hard all season and the results speak for themselves. Well done to the teams for their great efforts in the grand final, they had the spectators on the edge of their seats to the very end!

This year the junior coaching program moved up a notch through the efforts of the Junior Coaching Director, Greg Findley, who worked closely with Larry McIntosh, our Coaching Director, during the season to continue developing videos and coaching plans for the weekly training sessions. We were lucky to have many assistant coaches helping the coaches guide the players through the program this year. There are a lot of talented coaches in our club who volunteer their time on a weekly basis to develop skills in the juniors. They are well supported by our wonderful managers who make sure everyone gets to the right game at the right time, and keeps things calm during stressful games!

Our umpire contingent also continues to grow. We had quite a few new umpires join us this year which is fantastic. I would encourage you to consider taking up umpiring next season, it's a great way to gain a better understanding of the game, and it's a fun way to earn some extra money! Please continue to encourage our umpires as with your support and positive attitudes it can make their task much more enjoyable for everyone.

A big thank you to the parents who have battled peak hour traffic each week to get their kids to training and sat on the sidelines in freezing weather to cheer the teams on during their games. Without your support the kids would not be the players they are today.

We say farewell to a number of our U17 players this year as they finish their junior careers and move up to seniors. I know they will be an asset to any team they end up playing with next year.

The junior club, like every other sports club, would not function without the support of its wonderful volunteers. There are many people who work tirelessly behind the scenes all season and without their help the club would not be the great club it is today. A special thanks in particular to Meg Smith, Alison Keogh, Craig Shaw, Mark Butler, Anne Webster, Michelle Fairbairn, Ryan Pereira, Larry McIntosh and Greg Findley for their help in various tasks this season. Next year you may like to consider helping out; there are always lots of things that need to be done and many hands do make light work!

Junior Presentation night saw a huge crowd descend on the field to celebrate a successful season, enjoy the bbq and have fun with friends. We were honored to have John Cullen, Kirsten Pearce, Mark Ellis and Tom Brown attend and present awards. As you can imagine a lot of awards were handed out on the night to recognise our talented group of juniors. See the list below for award winners and team placings.

#### Junior Award Winners - 2019

Major Awards John Cullen Junior Sports Person of the Year – Lachlan Pereira Junior Club Person of the Year – Sebastien Butler & Kaitlin Rushton Coach of the Year – Jack Cullen Maurice Dawson Minkey Encouragement Award – Charlotte Frith

*Umpire Awards* North Area Encouragement Award – Naia Lopez & Eliot Miller Ryde Umpire Encouragement Award – Olivier Flokstra & Kayla Robson

*Coach Awards* Commitment to Coaching – Matt Edwards

Miscellaneous Awards Player Referral U11/U13 – Nate Bowly U11 Encouragement Award - Marlon Malhi Gowerton School Game Night Effort Awards - Liz Winlaw, Victoria Graves & Alicia MacMillan

Team & Division	Place	Coach(es)	Manager	Awards
Minkeys	N/A	Maurie Dawson, Will Rogers, Tim Collier, Richard Giles & Matt Young	N/A	All players received a medal for participating Minkey Encouragement Awards: Kiran Pearson, Cooper Humphreys, Gurekam kaur Basra, Joshua Harwood, Francis Alexander
11 Panthers A	Premiers (Major & Minor)	Greg Findley	Chris Pope	Coaches Award Finn Travers Coaches Award Leah Pope NA Encouragement: Piers Webster & Aaron Findley
U11 Tigers B	Semi Finalists	Samuel Gray Asst: Scott MacDonald	Tia MacDonald	Best & Fairest Eli MacDonald Most Improved Leela Panesar NA Encouragement: Jaiden Sian & Jessica Robson
U11 Lions C	8 <sup>th</sup> Place	Andrew Parker Asst: Sophie MacMillan	Jenny Neirinckx	Most Committed Mia Cunningham Best & Fairest Karim Elshorbagy NA Encouragement: Madeleine Reis & Ashleigh Fallins
U13 Panthers A	Premiers (Major & Minor)	Morgan Blamey & Tom Brown	Wendela Flokstra	Most Outstanding Jared Findley Coaches award Hamish Geraghty NA Encouragement: Alex May & Naia Lopez
U13 Tigers B	Equal 5 <sup>th</sup> Place	Evan Watson & Emma Cushing	Julie Brereton	Most Improved Japneet Kaur Most Consistent Zoe Cushing NA Encouragement: Caitlin Brereton & Luca Travers

U13 Lions B	Equal 5 <sup>th</sup> Place	Darren Morris Asst: Sebastien Butler	Jon Whitear	Best and Fairest Kayla Robson Most Improved Finlay Morris NA Encouragement: Sophie Hunter & Aisling Kennedy
U13 Jaguars C	5 <sup>th</sup> Place	Peter Hughes Asst: David Fairbairn & Charlie Hughes	Sarah Basha	Best and Fairest Hana Applegarth Most Improved Belice Oates NA Encouragement: Charlotte Basha & Amanda Travers
U15 Panthers A - Metro	Premiers (Major & Minor)	Jack Cullen Asst: Reghyn Harrison	Duncan Taylor	Best & Fairest Jaylen Harrison Rising Young Gun Eliot Miller
U15 Tigers B	Premiers (Major & Minor)	Matt Edwards Asst: Simon Miller	Lauren Critchley	Best & Fairest Sophie McMillan Hardest Worker Kai Togle NA Encouragement: Kalle Backstrom & Sophie Byrne
U15 Lions C	Semi Finalists	Kireth Sandhu & Darcy Keogh Asst: Mark Richard	Bob McArdle	Best & Fairest Samiya Gholkar Most Improved Hrideyjot Walia NA Encouragement: Alex McArdle & Finn Bowly
U17 Panthers A - Metro	Semi Finalists	Kiona Nicholl & Chris Coleman	Annelies Farquharson	Players' Player Sebastien Butler Most Consistent Nicola Farquharson
U17 Tigers B	Premiers (Major)	Teaj Sian	Bridget Robson	Best & Fairest Jade Long Most Consistent Matthew Young NA Encouragement: Zoe Jewell & Charlotte Collins
U17 Lions B	Premiers (Major)	Paul Levett	Paul Levett	Outstanding Contribution Kaitlin Rushton Most Improved Ava Daltrey NA Encouragement: Lily McDougall & Josette Pearce

It was also a successful year for the juniors with representative hockey. A large number of players represented North West Sydney and other Associations in all age groups for both field and indoor state championships. We also had many parents and coaches being involved as team managers, coaches or assistant coaches of rep teams this year and also some of our umpires participated at state champs too. We also had some U15 & U17 players selected to participate in the Sydney Metro Academy program.

The following players were selected in State teams or squads during the year.

Connor Hendriks - NSW PSSA State Team & U13 state squad Jared Findley - U13 Stars team Alex May - U13 Stars team Gurmann Singh Pawar - U13 Lions team Joshua Robson – U13 Stars team Tess Mahoney - U13 State squad GK Kayla Beaton – U16 All Schools NSW Blues team Sebastien Griffith - U15 State squad & U13 Indoor Stars team Jaylen Harrison – U15 NSW Blues team Meghan May – U15 Northern Territory team Liam Phelan – AAP squad 2019/20 Nicola Farquharson - NSW CIS U16 team Zoe MacMillan - NSW CIS U16 team Layla Riley - U18 Blues team, AAP squad & U16 All Schools NSW Blues team Lachlan Pereira - U18 Blues team, AAP squad & U16 All Schools NSW State team Rhys Williams - AAP squad

I have been extremely lucky to have a wonderful support network behind me, from both the club and my family this year and have enjoyed seeing our juniors grow and develop. Looking forward to seeing everyone back again next year for another fun and exciting year of hockey.

Kirrily Pereira Juniors' President

# **Director of Coaching**

The Coaching and Athlete Development Program was presented across the Ryde Hockey Club -Women's, Men's and the Juniors' Programs. This includes presentations to the junior players and parents across the age divisions. The program is a strategic coaching and athlete framework that delivers education and development across the Club. The program has 6 key pillars. Each pillar has specific key coaching principles and game play competencies.

#### Coaching plan

Game play WB technical coaching principles

- 1. Game play WB offensive
- 2. Game play WB & WOB contextual skills
- Decision making
- Game knowledge
- Tactical
- 4. Game play WOB defensive WOB skill principles
- 5. Game play defensive WOB playing principles
- 6. Game plays WB and WOB skillset and positional play.

#### Specialist skills

- PCA and PDC
- Drag flicking
- Goal keeping
- Shoot outs

#### Program Review

Special thanks to our Presidents, Kate Cade (Women), Dean Merchant (Men) and Greg Findley, Junior Coaching Director, for their tireless work throughout the year in support of the program. Reviews across respective programs have been completed, being a first for the Club. Thanks to all coaches for their support and feedback on their 2019 campaigns.

#### Women's Program

After working with Kate Cade, we have been able to priorities key initiatives from our program review. We are excited to report the launch of a 6 week Athletes and Coaches Development program. Kate and coach of the program, Chris Coleman, and his coaching staff will be delivering this exciting initiative. Special thanks to Kate and Chris.

#### Junior Program

Greg Findley, Junior Coaching Director, and Larry McIntosh, Director of Coaching delivered the following key principles across this year's program.

- Distribution principles and ball carry.
- Receiving principles in motion.
- Offensive principles overloading.
- Defensive Principles.
- Specialist skills
- Coach education and support on field.
- Resources video review and analysis white board workshops.
- JCD session plans support via mobile app with access to drills and skills.
- Game plays principles WB and WOB through the zones.

#### Centre of Development

Hockey NSW has approved a Centre of Development (COD) at Ryde. This program provides 21 hours of training for our U13 and U15 athletes as part of Hockey NSW Player Pathways Statewide Program. I am very pleased to announce Greg Findley has been appointed by HNSW as the COD Coordinator of this program. Congratulations Greg.

#### Goalkeeping

Andy Duggan, specialist goalkeeping coach has made a huge contribution to the development of our goalkeepers over the last two years. Goalkeeping numbers increased and development of our Goalkeepers has been amazing. Thank you Andy.

#### Appreciation

On behalf of the Club, a personal thanks to Greg Findley, all Junior Coaches and Club Coaches and Managers for the enthusiasm and commitment you bring to your appointed roles.

#### Minkey Program

I would like to acknowledge Maurice Dawson, Godfather of the kids. What a season we have had with some 40 of athletes participating in the Minkey program. With this increase in players we must have coaches. Thank you to parents and coaches for your support and time in assisting in the running and development of our Minkey program.

#### Junior President

I would like to thank Kirrily Pereira for her amazing work in managing the day to day running of the junior program. The junior players and families are very appreciative of your personal contribution to the Junior Program.

Larry McIntosh Director of Coaching

# **Sponsorship Director**

We have been fortunate to have Momento Hospitality Group continue their support of our club. On top of our original deal, they have happily accommodated the club, and its members, with functions and also dinner events.



I would like to take this opportunity to highlight that for both parties to fully benefit from the arrangement it is critical for club members (and their friends and family) to download, register and use the Momento application via their mobile phones. Doing so, will not only give you discounted meals, but every food purchase using your membership barcode will result in more money being donated to our hockey club. We would also like to acknowledge and thank our Community Sponsors for their support and engagement throughout the year. Please, where possible, support them as they have supported you and our club.



Finally, I would like to thank Courtyard by Marriott Sydney-North Ryde, who very generously supported Trivia Night, Family Day, and our Women's First Grade's grand final success. The support outlined through our partnership arrangements increases the resources and opportunities available to the Club to support its members. We look forward to continuing these arrangements in 2020. Regards,

Chris Coleman Sponsorship Director

# **Social Director**

### Some exciting things to report from 2019.

New Players' Night

This year the draw mystics favoured us and we were able to schedule New Players Night early in the playing season and on a day where we had men's and women's games scheduled against Sydney University. It was a balmy evening, well suited to members enjoying the hockey and the atmosphere from the vantage point of the hill. It was also an occasion to celebrate some key milestones, namely:

100 First Grade Games: Kiona Nicholl 250 Games: Letitia Cooper, Renee Dawson, Mark Ellis, Anthony Caton, Shaun Dobbin, Mark Eggers, Kevin Li, Dean Merchant 500 Games: Rob Egger, Alan Retford.

#### Trivia Night

The club's Trivia night is starting to attract a cult following and not only among Chris Coleman's work mates. A particular thank you to the Courtyard Marriot Hotel who hosted the event and ensured we were warm and comfortable. Chris Coleman did a great job as quiz master and the whole room contributed to the atmosphere. The conversation buzz was awesome and many teams used the event as a reunion. Indeed, many thought the night ended too early. Lock it into for next year.

#### Family Day

Our biggest day of the year and so it was again. Thank you to GNS for their ongoing support of the day. Nearly eighty volunteers made it possible and we once again able to showcase the club through the agency of Paul Mills and Live Streaming Brisbane - thus Family Day 2019 found its way to Limerick, Louisville and London. It was great to see the messages from those staying up in the wee international hours to catch a glimpse of their favourite hockey club. We are of course looking to ways to develop Family Day – let us know what you think.

#### Senior Presentation Night

Always a great night. Glen Castensen kept his opening remarks to a very respectable ten minutes and the official part of the evening – where many members are honoured – prefaced much merriment and fun – and it has to be said a very impressive commitment to dancing.

The events above are simply the major events – we also host a Senior Club Day with Sydney University and support Macquarie University's Pink Socks Day. Through John Cullen's initiative and networking we also introduced Fossils Day in 2019 – a great success. Beyond these events a number of teams held team dinners at the Governor Hotel or utilised the club's barbecue facilities. 5<sup>th</sup> Grade Men are probably champions in this regard. These are the types of activities that build a club and we would welcome suggestions on ways we could extend this bonhomie. The new club room which we hope to continue in 2020 can assist to support this objective.

In closing, many social activities depend on the efforts of volunteers- thank you to all who made these events happen.

Kieron Arthur Social Director

# **Facilities Director**

The 2019 Season has once again been a very successful one for our club.

Playing numbers have continued to increase and our wonderful ground is straining at the seams. Even with the possibility of a future move, we still endeavour to maintain the ground to a fitting standard, thus providing a safe and hospitable facility for the thousands of players and visitors who attend games during the season.

The Keith Thompson Hockey Centre is wholly maintained by Ryde Hockey Club members and junior parents, apart from the occasional grant. All repairs are paid for by the club. Throughout the year we had two well attended working bees. We succeeded in presenting the ground in an immaculate state for the "Family Day" which was a huge success.

Our biggest projects this year were removing the shop wall and creating a lovely Club Room and substantial cleaning of the playing surface, to remove the slip factor.

On a final note, I would like to thank the many people who have helped maintain our ground. Bernard Moore has done an incredible job mowing and maintaining the facility, congratulations on your well-deserved "Club Person of the Year" award. Special thanks also to Andrew Ramsay (Rambo) on his huge involvement and support in field maintenance. I would also like to thank Drew Parker for his organising, erecting and dismantling of the scaffolding for the camera platform for Family Day (a massive job).

Cheers,

Phil (Wally) Welsman Facilities Director

### **Women's Masters Report**

The Ryde Women's Masters players have completed another successful year in the Sydney Women's Hockey League (SWHL). SWHL is the premier women's Masters competition in Sydney and is an association based competition which refuses entry to club based sides. This is unlike the Men's Masters competition which is generally club based. For these reasons, the Ryde women play under the banner of their local association, North West Sydney Hockey Association.

During 2019 seven teams were entered in the SWHL competition, two teams in divisions 1 and 2, one in division 3 and two in division 4. The selection trials were once again successfully held at the Ryde field and due to our good facilities the Committee has been asked to book all selections trials there again in 2020.

The Women's Masters Full State Championships were held in July. This year the tournament was held at Bathurst. Five teams were registered in various divisions and age groups. It was a great weekend with teams entered in Over 35 division 1, Over 40 division 1 and division 2, Over 45 division 1 and division 2 and Over 50 division 3. The NWSHA teams will be heading north for the 2020 Half State Championships which will be held at Taree over three days, so keep the last weekend of July 2020 free.

The women's masters players also attended the indoor State Championships during 8th - 10th November 2019, held at Goulburn. Four teams participated. Due to our success in 2018 we were able to retain a division 2 team, two division 3 teams and one division 4 team.

Congratulations to Trudy Green, Amanda Meech and Ina Cadorin who represented NSW in their respective age divisions. Plaudits also to Leigh Pasfield who was awarded Best and Fairest player in SWHL Division 1 for her outstanding efforts in goal for NWSHA 1 Gold.

Well done to the Ryde players who played this season, including, Jenny Prosser, Flavia Neyertz, Trudy Green, Lucinda Priddy, Erin Kelly, Marielle Sprangers, Kara Retford, Selina Ellis, Pippa Quilty, Trudy Green, Leigh Pasfield, Cecilia Guerrero, Ros O'Sullivan, Belinda Madin, Therese Lee, Michelle Giaquinto, Amanda Truong, Julie Boulis, and Shelly Tate. Current Ryde players plus some previous players, such as Lesley Mallows, Hannah Goodchild and Wendela Flokstra, represent a quarter of the players in NWSHA women's masters teams. Ina Cadorin, Sharon Couts and Amanda Meech also played masters, but not with NWSHA.

Thanks to Gavin Hughes who coached a division 1 team and to Trudy and Selina for their contribution as committee members. Thank you to Danielle and David Alexander for umpiring; your expertise was greatly appreciated. A special thanks to Selina for all your hard work throughout the year. Selina took on a key roll with administering the whole NWSHA masters group of seven teams, the outdoor state championships and the indoor state championships. She also played in division two and coached a division four team. Thanks again Selina.

The 2019 season has been a challenging but good year for women's masters hockey at Ryde, with a record number of players participating. I look forward to next year being even better, with more participation and an appearance in the finals for more of the NWSHA team. So please think about joining us if you were born by 31st December 1985. There are teams available for everyone, regardless of experience or skill level.

ON the following page is a list containing the number of games players played by Ryde players, during the 2019 season.

Pippa Quilty

### Ryde members participating in NWSHA Women's Masters competition 2019

Julie Boulis	15 games
Kate Cade	2 games
Selina Ellis	12 games
Michelle Giaquinto	8 games
Hannah Goodchild	7 games
Trudy Green	8 games
Cecilia (Cci) Guerrero	13 games
Erin Kelly	9 games
Therese Lee	6 games
Belinda Madin	12games
Lesley Mallows	9 games
Flavia Neyertz	9 games
Ros O'Sullivan	9 games
Leigh Pasfield	10 games
Lucinda Priddy	8 games
Jen Prosser	8 games
Pippa Quilty	9 games
Kara Retford	10 games
Marielle Sprangers	11 games
Amanda Truong	10 games

# **Men's Masters Reports**

### Ryde Masters A (Premier League)

Although we had a slightly smaller squad this year, we managed to get a competitive team on the pitch for every game with the occasional (much appreciated) help from the Bs. We proved throughout the season that we could beat any team on the day, and we started the season well and stormed to the top of the ladder. We did enough to stay at the top until the end of season and ended up as Minor Premiers.

Unfortunately, in the final series we struggled to get a side together due to injuries and absences and were unable to make the Grand Final despite a great effort from all players. In the end it was a very enjoyable season both on and off the pitch with the highlight, as always, being the social post-match discussions in the car park over a beer or two.

A big thank you to James Maltman for helping out with game plans and everyone else who stepped up to help run the side when Jimmy and I were not around.

Looking forward to next year and going one better! Hopefully everyone will return next season and we can add some new blood to ensure we have another fun but competitive season.

Mark Ellis

### Ryde Masters B (Sydney Cup)

#### The Mighty Masters B - 2019 Team

Tweedz, Kiwi, Hellman, TWTM, Marija, Sarge Apps, Elwood, PC, Macca, Doggy, Dunny ScoMo, Kamal, Beato, Sparrow, Surgeon,4x4

I often think that the success or otherwise of a Masters B season can be measured by the January kickoff bbq at Dunnies in January. One year we missed the BBQ due to weather and didn't do so well ... but 2019 was a good year. We had a good turnout, some new faces and returning players as well - by the end of the night we had talked it up so much that we had already won the premiership and the season was just a formality!

Well - may be not ... we got off to a rocky start. Andy succumbed to injury before the season began leaving us scrambling to get a goalie. Likewise, Elwood (Matt Whitting) was out for the year. Our first 2 games didn't go according to script, we drew first up to GNS and lost our second game to Briars. Was looking like a tough hill to climb from here.

However, that is where the bad news ended. We found our rhythm and starting climbing our way back.

We welcomed some new faces to the team.

- Paul Cullen made a return to Ryde Hockey after a break of 10 years doubling our Cullen factor.
- We were able to fit Macca under the salary cap and his presence in the mid field was a huge lift to our mid field.
- Tweedz joined us from the coast and the Ryde goal became a sacred place that very few opposition strikers were permitted to visit.
- We also welcomed back Sarge from his three 3 year deployment in a secret location we can't talk about and ScoMo was ready to return after a year off.
- Likewise, there are a few names that left us this year as they moved on to other teams. Studdy, Rohan and Simon McCoy, and Kerry Marthick who have all been integral to the success and culture of the team for the past 10 (or more) years joined the C team to help them ultimately win their premiership.
- Tiny played a few games last year before heading off overseas.
- Beatle had a lash with another club this year but we're hoping he'll rejion the panther den in 2020.

#### Memorable moments for the year - there were many!

The first game against Macarther where after the first 15 minutes we hadn't left our 25 and felt like we were about to get a hockey lesson with a big score against us but somehow won 7-0. (And then backed that up with 8-2 in the second game we played against them)

The first semifinal against Sydney Uni was perhaps our toughest game - after losing to them 2-5 the week before in the last regular season game we knew we were up against in the Semis but with only 11.5 players we weren't overly confident. Turns out there was nothing to worry about with Kamal's fantastic analysis from the last game we adjusted our strategy and the game ended up a 1-1 draw after regular time so we went to 1v1s. Thanks to some great shooting and fantastic defence by Tweedz in his first ever competition 1v1 we got the job done.

The Grand Final against Briars was epic - 1-0 up after 20 seconds, only to give one back a few minutes later - 1 all. Sarge took the field after 10 minutes for his tour of duty but in the first 30 seconds stopped what looked to be a certain goal with his face and earned a trip to the hospital after the game but kept the scoreboard in check. As the game progressed both teams fought hard but it was Ryde that edged ahead on goals with a full time score of 5-2 and successfully defending our minor premiership from 2018.

Thanks again to Dunny and Doggy for their guidance through the season and to hydration executive Elwood.

Scott Familton

### Ryde Masters C1 (Masters League)

This year saw Ryde attempt to run five teams I the Sydney Master Competition. This consisted of a team in each of the Premier, Sydney Cup, legends and two in the Masters grade. Ryde's third team started the season with 12 regular and fit players and the promise of being able to rotate some Sydney Cup players to provide numbers. However, three or four weeks in we lost Rohan McCoy to a major cycling accident for much of the season returning only for a cameo in the finals. Fortunately, we picked up two new players from out of town, namely Alister Berkeley and Thomas Lamond and the third of the Appleby brothers (Paul) together with the regrading of Aaron Scott from the legends team we were able to field a competitive team every week. The highlight of the season was the game against Manly, a week when we could only get 10 on the field. Fortunately Manly were in the same boat. We adapted the better and played our best attacking game on the season running out winners 7-0.

During the season Sutherland continued their previous season's final victory form over us and to be our nemesis. However, they didn't seem to be as consistent against the rest of the competition and end the season in second place on the ladder behind us.

So, we entered the semi-finals not having beaten Sutherland since early last year. However, as they say you learn more from your losses than victories and so it was with us as we started the semi-final in marvellous fashion scoring twice to go to the break 2-0 ahead. Sutherland stung by this changed their game plan, dominated the second half and ran out the winners 3-2. We were left to lick our wounds and take on Sydney Uni in the elimination semi-final, with Ryde running out winners 3-2.

Now to the last game of the season against the old foe Sutherland. Again, we started well working around Sutherlands strengths and attacking their weaknesses and we soon started to prevail scoring a couple of masterful goals in the process. Sutherland came back with one of their own. We forged ahead again to take a 3-1 lead early in the second half. Playing well Sutherland came again with their second goal with 12 minutes to go. Ryde lifted its game again and ended the half keeping Sutherland pinned in their half. Eventually Ryde won the game that counted the most 3-2. Masters Champions at last

The experiment of running 5 teams was a strain on the two Masters grade teams and the Legends team players who helped out often. The numbers who want to play master will continue to expand in the short term and Ryde Master Management will reassess the merits of five teams again next year based on the

potential numbers. For those turning 35 of 40 next this is a marvellous and most competition and is to be recommended for enjoyment and healthy living. I wish to thank all those that helped with either of the Ryde Masters grade teams. Your contribution forged friendships and made for an enjoyable season for all.

Ryde Masters Players from all grades made a significant contribution to all of Sydney's Masters representative teams with 23 being selected in the State sides for the National Championships played in Perth this year.

Mark Richard

Ryde Masters Coordinator

### Ryde Masters C2 (Masters League)

Ryde entered two teams in the Masters grade of Sydney Masters Hockey in 2019. These teams were Ryde 3 and Ryde 4. The Ryde 4 team was made up by many of the older nucleus of players who have been who have been playing together for many years in Masters hockey and some new players. The team finished seventh.

The Masters grade competition was relatively even but Ryde 4 were unable to score enough goals to convert close games into a draw or win. The team scored 11 goals and had 35 against. The highest score against was 4 goals but we were only able to more than 1 goal in two games (which was 2 goals). The leading goal scorer was Geoff Davenport with 5. Unfortunately, Geoff could only play 6 games prior to pulling out due to ongoing knee issues.

The team played every game with determination and a lot of spirit, never letting any team really get totally on top of us. However, the lack of "specialist" forwards and spare numbers always seemed to have us defending and not being able to maintain attacking pressure long enough to score regularly.

At the start of the season the team roster was reasonably strong with 15 players listed. However, as the season progressed there were 3 players with season ending injuries and a transfer interstate for work. This meant the team often played with a bare 11 players.

This included players from Ryde 5 (Legends grade), regularly called on to make up the numbers. Big thanks to Graeme Newsome, Koos Kruger and Aaron Scott for the many games they filled in for the Ryde 4 team.

The team faces the prospect of being relegated to Legends Open Age grade in 2020 but we will await the overall team nominations and gradings in SMHA for confirmation. Charlie Calleja was the team's Best & Fairest player followed by Steve Giaquinto and Ken Nicholls.

Special mentions:

Andy Haynes - for managing the team while I was away for 8 weeks. Thanks Andy.

Hani Shehata – First year in Masters hockey, always gave 100%, played anywhere in the forward line and improved every game.

Michael Dahl – First year in Masters and much appreciated having another goal keeper in Masters hockey ranks and performing well.

The team was: Michael Dahl (GK), Charlie Calleja, Steve Giaquinto, Andy Haynes, Steve Reilly, Ken Campbell, Matt Toffer, Phil Retford, Ian Blackburn, Daniel Newman, Darren Morris, Brad Parkes, Ken Nicholls, Hani Shehata, Garth Faine and Geoff Davenport.

Steve Reilly (Ryde 4 Masters League Team Coordinator)

### Ryde Masters D (Legends League)

The Legends season had its highs and lows (with more lows than highs, unfortunately) ending in a disappointing loss in the Semi Final against Northside.

I would like to thank all of my teammates for their effort and support during the year, congratulate the other Veterans teams for their successes, and thank the Club for the structure and support provided to all teams.

Steve Graham

# Team Reports – Women's

### 1st Grade Women (ML1)

What an amazing season with a team of wonderful players. To win a Premiership in the first season as a coach is something I will treasure. But as the saying goes, it takes a village to raise a child – so it goes to win a premiership. The Club has such a great vision and the support for every player, coach, manager, videographer, statistician, parent and supporter is second to none. I would like to show my appreciation and gratitude to the following:

- To Tim Collier and Glen Castensen\_their unwavering support to myself and the team throughout the season has been fantastic. Little comments, texts and phone calls throughout the season have been great and mean so much.
- To Gina Rees and Larry McIntosh your coaching support and encouragement/advice etc to the team and myself has been invaluable and truly appreciated. It is such a wonderful opportunity to be surrounded by so many talented and knowledgeable people who are so willing to pass this on.
- ٠
- To Kate Cade thank you for supporting the girls and I throughout the season and listening to the feedback, thoughts and ideas.
- To all the players who helped us out by playing when we needed the extra players thank you for helping us reach the Grand Final without you all stepping in this wouldn't have been possible.
- To Mick and Cecilia for keeping the lollies, tissues, drinks etc on the bench, ensuring we didn't have too many players on the field, rolling the substitutions and just being a sounding board when I needed to vent thank you so very much.
- To Paul Riley, Kirsty O' Sullivan, David Moore and anyone else who helped with the videoing of the games and uploading to Hudl thanks.
- To each and every one of you girls thank you for accepting me into Ryde Hockey Club and to be the coach of your team it is an honour to be part of such an amazing team. To Mikaela, Boudine & Kiona each of you bring different strengths & qualities to the Leadership Team which has been fantastic. From the social aspects to the pre/mid game speeches and the leadership you provide to the team on and off the field has truly made a huge impact for the team.

From the minute I was appointed I had such amazing support from everyone – there where meetings to explain the vision and culture of the club – then we had the exciting experience at the Tiger Turf Cup to introduce myself to the players and families. Then the trainings and practice matches began where I could see the huge talent of the team. Tim invited me to be a part of the men's Kick-Off where I was able to see the professionalism and passion first hand.

The women's Kick-Off night went well and you could see the eagerness of the players to prove their places in First Grade and also see them working out whether this "new" coach had the goods. During this period, we had players leave the Club due to career moves, study, needing a break etc. Initially it was quite a shock, but it is fantastic the way the Club supports the sport of Hockey and farewells these players only with goodwill. We had a couple of guest speakers come and run sessions for the Men's and Women's teams based around Nutrition, Wellbeing and Sport Psychology – these sessions were well received and helped build into the concept that hockey has so many different components to it.

The first half of the season was like a dream – we won 11 games straight! The girls had bought into the style of play and team culture. Attendance at training – for the most part, were great and the level of participation and intensity was high. The opportunity to blood some of our younger 2<sup>nd</sup> Grade players at training and then in games, helped bode well for the second part of the season, when the State and National representative duties began to take effect on who we had to play each week. Gina and I worked

closely to ensure that the players were following the game plan, understanding the plays and building together as a positive and cohesive team.

We had the traditional slump in the middle of the season with training numbers lessening. This was due to a myriad of reasons such as sickness, representative duties, study and work commitments and holidays. We knew it was coming and tried to prepare for it, but we started to draw and lose matches, and this affected the mood in the team. We had a few team meetings and called each other out on attitude and performance, isolated the issues and as a group devised a way forward. We set new goals and affirmed what we wanted to achieve and how we were going to do this. It took a little bit of time, but as the season was drawing to a close you could see the girl's momentum pickup and we were back on track.

We missed out on the Minor Premiership by one point – reflections on missed opportunities were my constant friend. However, with a renewed sense of purpose and a real maturity to what the team wanted to achieve we went into the Semi Final ready to go. We lost the game, but we played extremely well and just had a couple of lapses that we were punished in. At this point, I would like to highlight how mature and positive ALL the players were – we didn't lapse into a blame game – we watched the footage, saw our mistakes – then devised ways to ensure it didn't happen again. At training the players were upbeat and took the intensity to the next level. Larry helped at training with a few tweaks to our structure and with this we won the final.

The week leading up to the Grand Final was really special for me and it was something I had never experienced before – I have been in many Grand Finals as a player and Coach but at Ryde it is mind blowing the way in which the whole Club comes out to support you. The players and I really appreciated the support and all the little things provided to us to ensure the best outcome. At our final training session of the year the players were so focused – a few bystanders noted that the team had a real sense of camaraderie and purpose.

The Grand Final day couldn't have gone better – all the preparation, the highs and the lows of the season all came down to this one game. We had Larry and Gina on the bench, with Cecilia and Mick. Every player was fit and healthy and ready to go – the stage was set. As a coach there were moments in that game where I honestly just took a moment to watch a masterclass in hockey – yes, I can take a little of the credit but by no means can I take all of it. Each and every player did their part – they followed the game plan, they stayed true to the team culture and the hockey they played was magnificent.

Congratulations girls you deserved to win the Grand Final! Throughout the season there were patches of majestic hockey but in the Grand Final you played such brilliant hockey and I hope you have enjoyed the season. I would also like to congratulate the various players on their representative success throughout the year – it is a testament to your commitment to the game and passion for your sport. I would also like to highlight a huge thankyou to the players who attended training week in week out and kept the team's dream alive when your teammates were unavailable.

Thank you once again for accepting me into the club and giving me the opportunity to work with such a talented and wonderful group of players. Thank you to the coaches who have gone before me and helped set the foundation for the success of the team.

Nikki Beaton First Grade Coach

### 2nd Grade Women (ML2)

Stuart Farquharson led our team as Head Coach supported by assistant coach Erin Kelly and Manager Annelies Farquharson. Together they were a force of positivity which kept all of us in good spirits throughout the season. We had a mix of old and new as well as young and old players making for a diverse team.

Throughout the season our team was 'dynamic', by this I mean we did not have the same composition of players from week to week. This can make it difficult; however, I'm very proud of the girls as they didn't let it phase them and they were able to work together and play some competitive hockey week in and week out.

Without seeing the statistics I'd put my money on us being the team with the most draws this season. Reflecting on these, one of our best games and a highlight of the season was the game against UNSW where we came back from 4-0 down to draw 4-4. This is just one example of the resilience and 'never give up' attitude we showed throughout the season. Halfway through the year we had Sharon Coutts and Tami Griffiths join the team and they made a huge impact, strengthening our midfield and defence. Their experience shone through and really lifted our team. Amanda Meech aka 'Meechy' in goal played a pivotal leadership role from the back. Hannah Fawle in defence was one of our rocks, often injecting herself forward to keep the opposition on their toes and guessing. Nicola Farquharson in the midfield (only one away from having the full Farquharson household) who never ran out of energy and was very versatile, excelling in all positions she was placed in. Meghan May was our top goal scorer, where she managed to perfect her toma and put away some wicked goals.

A personal note from me, this was my first year at the club and playing hockey in Sydney and I was welcomed with open arms, making me feel like a part of the Ryde family from the offset. I've played in a lot of different clubs and this one is truly special so thank you. Although we didn't finish up where we would have liked I know that we have all improved individually and as a collective. This year was just the curtain raiser for our 2020 podium finish!

Emma Jackson

### 3rd Grade Women (ML4)

The 2019 3rd grade team proved that despite beginning the season from a humble and shaky start we were able to build a team environment that could push and challenge each other to exceed expectations. Having been relegated in 2018, the team had an easier league to play in (ML4), but also the challenge of sustaining our performance. We effectively rebuilt the team with a group that covered anything from ML2 to ML5 players from the prior season.

The team had a vast range of team member ages, from 14 to 55+ years, with the experience of Trudy Green creating a strong foundation in defence and as Captain. Barbie (Amanda Truong) delivered strong team leadership for the strikers and we were joined by new club members that made their mark, especially in midfield through the experience of Liz de Abreu (a true club member) and Saska Ingham (striker), both sadly heading to Europe before the season ended.

As in all seasons, we had some ups and downs but later on in the season the team benefitted from the experience up front by Ina Cadorin, bringing also good team spirit, and the less experienced players stepped up, gaining themselves an airing in 2nd grade at the end of the season. We had some sparse weeks availability wise (as did a few teams) but the team pulled through, often playing more than one game themselves or being lucky to be supported by 2s players, who also played 2 games on the weekend. The team missed the presence of Kara Lee Blood (Walton) in Goals at the back end of the season as she headed off to the "Altar" at the end of August and enjoyed her honeymoon in Europe.

With practice came results, with our goal difference improving over the season and our structure developing. Small performance hiccups later on in the season were due more to resilience rather than ability, proving that a strong team effort is key to success.

The team was a pleasure to coach, mostly due to their quirky sense of humour and desire to build both an on and off-field approach (picnics were often held to watch other teams and our Facebook page provided some giggles) that relied on team effort over individual performance. Rosalie Flokstra excelled at goal scoring, achieving joint top goalscorer for SWHL ML4 (despite only playing 12 out of 18 games). Kirsty

O'Sullivan overcame a fractured back yet still cheered the team on during cold Sunday mornings, gaining points in the best and fairest voting, when not even playing.

Sophie Parkes got better and better as the season went on, consistently finding space to drive through the midfield, an effort recognised by winning the Best and Fairest competition. Trudy Green was a constant points accumulator in Best and Fairest voting with consistently strong tackling and well-placed efforts, but was pipped at the post in the last few games.

Our final standing was third position, losing out to Moorebank and Sydney Uni, neither being able to be promoted as they are landlocked in ML4 with 3 teams above them in their own clubs. With this in mind, we will nominate ourselves for promotion to ML3 for the 2020 season. Fingers crossed!

As a new club coach and manager, it was good to explore together how we could achieve new heights. I'd like to thank John Cullen for his advice and support and those that consulted with me along the way to get the best out of the team.

Looking forward to seeing the team develop and having fun in 2020!

Liz May Third Grade Coach

### 4th Grade Women (ML5)

Having not coached a senior women's team for over 25 years the task of taking on the 4<sup>th</sup> Grade team this year was one of excited terror. It was clear from the early weeks that the junior teams I have been coaching for seven or eight years were an entirely different proposition to the senior women's ranks. The game has changed so much since my playing days and the coaching learning curve was steep.

Thankfully the 4<sup>th</sup> Grade team were an absolutely wonderful group of women that showed me a lot of patience getting the team underway for the season. The team were a delightful mix of juniors, seniors and masters players from all walks of life that made for a genuinely pleasant season of competitive and fun hockey. I was truly impressed by the respect the team showed towards each other with never a harsh said when things didn't go quite right and the playing group always offering words of positive encouragement and support at all times.

We broke our season up into three times six week segments across the eighteen-week season.

Our first segment (the build phase) results in two wins, three draws and one loss. The team steadily improved week on week with a large focus on core skills, press setting and outletting. The second segment (the consolidation phase) resulted in two wins, one draw and three losses. Whilst there was a level of frustration at the higher than expected rate of very narrow losses the team looked positively at our excellent overall defensive record and committing to work on our finishing off in front of the goal posts that we swore were made of kryptonite. The team really hit their straps in the last segment (the acceleration phase) finishing off the season with four wins and two losses. Our best game of the season came in the last round and was a thoroughly polished performance beating eventual grand finalists the Cronulla Sharks, 2-0.

There was very little separating the top five teams in this division with the top team finishing the season on 36 points and us in fifth place with 28 points. It was heartbreaking to finish the season on equal points, equal wins and equal goal difference with the eventual fourth place Wenty. We were tipped out on net goal difference in the round games against this team. However, the team took great heart in finishing the season four places above last season and with the fifth best defensive record in the SWHL for the year conceding only 15 goals in 18 rounds. Our nadir was our goal scoring racking up 22 goals for the season - this is a target area for improvement next year.

The team greatly appreciated the time provided by John Cullen who took us through some great skills sessions at various points of the season. They also learnt a lot from the outstanding video and tagging provided by John and Muz during one of our games. Skills support offered by James Paterson (goal pressure) and Andy Duggan (goalkeeping) were also of huge benefit to the team. I would also like to thank the great support and a listening ear provided by Kate Cade and Larry McIntosh whenever I needed a bit of a steer or advice during the season. Final thanks go to our ever diligent and thorough team manager Sophie Leijer who did an outstanding job this year.

Our end of team dinner was a great event and I was genuinely touched by the gift provided by the team. It was encouraging to hear so much positive talk on the night and a keenness to keep the team together to once more go into battle in season 2020.

Paul Levett Fourth Grade Coach

### 5th Grade Women (ML6)

This season was always going to be a season of rebuilding after being demoted back to ML6. The side was rather new as there was a combination of current players from the 2018 side, as the majority of the 2018 side continued to play in the ML5 competition with our 4<sup>th</sup> grade side, new players (Penny, Ro and Julie), and the promotion of Mel, Michelle and Selina from our 6th grade side. Leigh Pasford was a fantastic addition to our team after Rosalie was promoted to 3<sup>rd</sup> grade.

Though our results at the beginning of the season were not ideal we were still competitive and finished the season in 2<sup>nd</sup> position, which is an awesome result, with 12 wins, 4 losses and 2 draws. In fact, we recorded a winning streak of 5 wins later in the season that assisted with making the finals. Our major strength was our defence where we only conceded 12 goals, which was the 2<sup>nd</sup> best defensive record across all grades of the SWHL competition.

During our finals campaign, we played Moorebank (draw), it was a very competitive game and we only missed out on making the Grand Final due to our opponents being placed higher on the ladder. We then lost to a UNSW (that had a number of players who had experience at a ML3 level.

From my point of view, there was definite improvement in all players' skills - this was assisted through the focus of training on the basic skills. An increased focus was also placed on converting goal opportunities through more specialist training with all players on being more direct within the attacking D. This will assist with getting more consistent results. Positivity was a major theme and all players played in a positive manner with great sportsmanship.

Katie and Erin were a fantastic help and did a great job as the assistant coach/manager of our side and were a key in keeping the side positive, thankyou Erin and Katie for your involvement. I would like to thank John Cullen and Larry McIntosh for their involvement. Thank you to Kate Cade as women's president for her support. Thanks to all players who were either regular players or assisted our side later in the season when we had several players unavailable. The team will be a lot more competitive next year if there is a consistency with the playing squad and a more aggressive playing style.

Gav Hughes Fifth Grade Coach

### 6th Grade Women (SN B)

In a blink of an eye the season was over, playing only 14 rounds the season seemed like it had just started and then it was over. We finished the season in 5<sup>th</sup> place with 3 wins, 6 draws and 5 losses. We had the second-best defensive record in the competition but ultimately too many draws cost us a place in the finals.

We had a great season. While we did not have success on the field, by the remarks throughout the season everyone had a lot of fun and learnt a thing or two about hockey and life. We had a simple game plan which players affectionately referred to as Mick's Commandments which were as follows:

- Pass early, pass often
- Get the ball
- If in doubt run faster
- Pass with purpose
- No tea bagging (hanging your stick in tackle and expecting to get the ball)
- Do not admire your pass
- Give 110%
- Remember to "Bye Felicia"

Congratulations to Ceci on winning the best and fairest and coming 2<sup>nd</sup> in the Judy Goosakoff trophy. Thank you to our manager Felicity for keeping us all organised and Dave Goosakoff for his assistance in coaching. On a personal note I would like to thank all the players for their commitment and effort. I could not ask for more and they were all a pleasure to coach. Also thank you to those who convinced me to have the shortest retirement from hockey coaching on the promise that I would have fun and enjoy coaching 6<sup>th</sup> Grade - they were not wrong! I had a great time and it was a privilege to coach such a great team.

Wishing everyone a safe off season and enjoyable Christmas and see you all in 2020. Cheers

Mick Gunner Sixth Grade Coach

### 7th Grade Women (SN D)

There were 17 players registered as the core team for RHH7. The team culture was excellent and there was a very high level of support, camaraderie and encouragement between team members. It was the first season at Ryde for five of these RHH7 players.

During the season, RHH7 was supported by 8 players from RHH6 who played down to fill vacant positions given that a number of RHH7 team members were not available for many of the scheduled games. It is noted that the majority of these players from RHH6 were actually members of RHH7 team during the previous year, so the positive team culture was able to be maintained. On the matter of team culture a particular acknowledgement to Annie Tapscott who recorded the highest level of training and games attendance over the season. RHH7 played a total of 16 games in SNWHA with the first 2 games in Division C, and the remaining 14 games in Division D. Although RHH7 had qualified to compete in Division C following the 2018 season, given the replacement of its 5 most experienced players in 2018, with 5 new players in 2019, the team requested to be moved down to a lower grade that more appropriately reflected the skills of the team. In the Division D competition, RHH7 were 5<sup>th</sup> overall out of 8 teams. They won 6 games, drew 1 game and lost 7 games. After a poor start to the season, it was very exciting finale with excellent attendance at training and with a strong focus on strategy and skills development in the final 4 weeks, RHH7 finished the season only 1 point short of achieving the finals.

Virtually all players in RHH7 were acknowledged with best and fairest points during the season. RHH7 team members scored goals during the season as follows –

Susan Murray5Ros O'Sullivan3Louisa Schutz, Tilly Rose Keogh2Danielle Edwards, Simran Singh,1Annie Tapscott1

In addition, Cecilia Guerrero and Mahalia Dainty from RHH6 each scored 1 goal. Looking Forward to the 2020 Season.

Ros O'Sullivan - Seventh Grade Manager

# Team Reports - Men's

### 1st Grade Men (PL1)

The 30 man 1<sup>st</sup> grade squad and coaching staff started the 2019 campaign knowing that this year would be different. They say change is as good as a holiday. I certainly wouldn't describe 2019 as a holiday, quite the opposite actually, 2019 was spent predominantly outside of the comfort zone.

Almost everything we thought we knew about hockey had to be relearnt. Playing positions changed weekly. Fitness benchmarks had to be reached to step on the field. Patience was tested, uncomfortable conversations were shared. We had to trust the guys around us more than we have ever done before.

To be challenged in such a way speaks volumes about the depth of the squad. Tim Collier believed in us and put us up to the challenge from day 1. We've taken so many big steps forwards with the sky the limit.

The season proper and game days revealed a particular rhythm. The team were methodical in the victories over lower ranked teams and outside of one game against Moorebank, games against teams ranked one to four on the competition table were tight affairs. In these games we frequently held sway on the score of possession and territory but we were unable to take the points – in these games lapses in concentration and a failure to convert our opportunities were telling. This is not to suggest that there were not memorable moments. An away draw against Sutherland was important to the team believing in itself, while towards the end of the season, a home draw against NWS, a victory against Sutherland and a very tight loss against Moorebank gave us all heart. The best rendition of the team song occurred in the home win against Sutherland – although I think First Place for this title goes to Steve Besanvale and 4<sup>th</sup> Grade after their grand finals win.

Thank you to TC, Larry, Dave, Georgia, Liz and Davo for all your effort and patience throughout the year. Without your countless hours of hard work, we wouldn't be where we are today.

Thank you as well to the club for your ongoing support. We love and respect it. We know that the draw did not make it easy this year for members to get around the team on match day – so we really appreciate the support that we did receive. Family Day is of course a favourite with the team – a cherished opportunity to be a part of the day and to contribute.

A shout out as well to former first graders who attended Fossils Day and took time out to reminisce with the team. In those stories there were some very good goals scored, most often after 60 metre swerving, junking runs completed by a scorching shot. May it continue.

Take home messages from 2019

- 5 Debutants
- 4 Sets of brothers
- 3 New Players added to the squad throughout the year
- 2 Finished the season two games too early
- 1 Team, hungrier than ever to take on 2020

Billy Shaw First Grade Captain

#### 2nd Grade Men (PL2)

2019 was an interesting year for the Second Grade squad, as it always seems to be, although in retrospect a season that saw far more positives than negatives as a group and plenty of improvement across the more Junior members of the squad, with this year 'Junior' being classed as sub 30 it would seem!!!

Pre-season saw many of the squad involved in TC's squad and the exposure to a new playing style and an opportunity to not only improve their own skills but also learn more about the intricacies of hockey

tactics and grow their "hockey brains". This new way of playing and opportunity to develop provided the squad with a lot of enthusiasm and the improved fitness saw the group start well in the early rounds, only for player unavailability and lower than needed training attendance to play havoc with the middle stretch of the season, therefore leaving the squad in a precarious position of sitting just outside of finals come the mid-way point.

So with a new vigour provided through Cam Brown's leadership, the squads tagline of #win pretty and the return of the infamous Rowdy, as well as an increase in training attendance with many third grade players taking the opportunity to come along, the squad stared down the home stretch with the clear target of improving our style of play and ensuring a finals berth where we knew we could cause any side trouble. This focus bought an impressive finish to the season with 7 wins from the last 9 games and secured a clear fifth spot and the opportunity to play finals. The momentum carried on strong in to the finals with a 3-0 win over the 4th placed Sydney University. The team unfortunately succumbed to an impressive Moorebank side in the semis, and in hindsight the coach regrets trying to go toe-to-toe with a better side, maybe should have parked that bus after all!!!

That said, top four is a solid result for the group and something to build on in 2020. With what seems many of the squad returning, hopefully a few old faces rejoining, and new players coming from above or below the foundations are set and 2020 should be a very enjoyable year for anyone involved in the squad. In the 2s, player development is as important as winning and it was great to see Lachie Howard, Lachie Pereira and Kireth Sandhu all make their 1st grade debuts in 2019 and for Reghyn Harrison to win the breakthrough player across the men's teams. Congratulations to you guys in particular and all the players involved in 2020, especially those stepping up to help from 3s. I'd like to say it was a pleasure to coach you all for the year...... although we all know that isn't quite the truth but it was fun all the same ....

Alex Jones Second Grade Coach

### 3rd Grade Men (PL3)

From the Coach Well what could've been...

Newcastle plate winners 2 years in a row, 18 games, 12 wins, 4 draws and 2 losses during season proper. 61 goals scored, 26 against, a total of 40 points. The team had improved from previous season where it had 8 losses. The team focus was to be stronger on the ball and compete for larger periods against good opposition.

Congratulations to Darcy Keogh on winning team's best and fairest. I would like to thank Michael English and Ben Wilson for assisting 3<sup>rd</sup> grade over the last 2 years, Jack Cullen for his captaincy and leadership with the squad. There was a great camaraderie in the team evident in the team, evident in great team functions and consistent training attendance from a core group of players. There were also very good relations with the Men's 4<sup>th</sup> grade team with both teams highly supportive of each other.

I feel after 3 years of preliminary finals appearances and the winner of those preliminary finals going on to win premiership, this team isn't far away. I would like to thank the club for the opportunity to coach 3<sup>rd</sup> grade. It has been a fine group of young men to be involved with both on and off the field. Wishing them all well in 2020.

Dunny Third Grade Coach

#### From the Captain

Ryde Men's 3rd grade started the 2019 season with a bang, beating last years premiers UTS 7-0. With only a few new faces joining us for the season, we held high hopes for another great year. We finished

the season with 12 wins, 4 draws and only 2 losses, proving to be quite consistent. Although not as successful as we had hoped with the team going down in extra time in the preliminary final to the eventual winners Sydney University, we had a great time playing hockey together as a group. The boys put in an outstanding effort week in and week out, showing up all over the park and competing throughout. A special mention must be made to our Player of the year Darcy Keogh, who was a rock in the heart of the midfield.

With many highs throughout the season, none compared to the battering we gave Glebe at their home field, Cintra. This was a team likewise we had not won at Cintra for three years. We had never sung the team song quite so loud and it was a moment of pure euphoria.

The team remained positive throughout the season under the expert guidance of coach Steve Dunn, whose commitment was evident every week in his inspirational talks and mentoring. We must also thank manager Ben Wilson who kept us organised and in line. A big thank you also goes to the club and our committed spectators for their continued support and belief in the team and the coaching staff.

Jack Cullen Third Grade Captain

#### 4th Grade Men (PL4)

Men's 4th grade had a highly successful season in winning both the minor premiership as well as eventually the premiership in dramatic fashion with a 4-3 win in overtime on grand final day. These achievements would not have been possible without the graft our players showed at training and their tremendous team spirit displayed all year.

The beginning of the season commenced with high hopes for the 3rd and 4th grade squad. We had a great deal of faith in the talent of the squad and were impressed with the attitude brought to training. On that matter, I'd like to thank Steve Dunn and all the 3rd grade players. As a group, we forged an environment of striving for excellence that was key to our success over the course of the year.

During the regular season we had initial struggles which ultimately translated into good form. The record at the end of the season stood at 16 wins, a draw and a lone loss in the final round of the season. We managed the best for and against in PL4 scoring 73 goals with only 13 against. At this point I'd like to make mention of our goalkeeper Ryan Schaefer who performed admirably when called upon but who was precluded from best and fairest points many weeks owing to our sturdy defense. On the goal scoring side of the equation Liam Hitchcock played a crucial role sending thunderbolts into the backboard from our short corner regularly. He and Luke Watson had a mighty duel for top goal scorer in the team for most of the season with Luke running away with the honours late in the year.

Some highlights of the season for me include the development of some of our younger players to being core contributors to the team. Jaylen Harrison entered the team after representing NSW at the U15 Nationals and provided a real boost to the team. I feel players such as Rory Woods, Alex Hunter and Laurence Kennedy bettered themselves time and again this season. I must commend their work ethic. They were assisted by an experienced group of players that provided guidance and strength when needed. I'd like to extend my thanks Matt McKay, Kieran Nicholson and Rob Tohu for their part in our achievement.

A special mention must go to Luke Watson for scoring the most goals in the club this year. Peter Corcoran is also worthy of recognition here for winning the Pop Reece trophy for men's best and fairest. It would also be remise not to mention the heroics of Steve Besanvalle in scoring the winning goal in extra time of our grand final.

On a personal note, I would like to extend my thanks to the wider Ryde support network in place. Tim Collier and Larry McIntosh helped with coaching strategy and being a sounding board throughout the year. Thanks also to Dean Merchant for his assistance with selections and team registration throughout the year.

I'd like to extend my congratulations to all of the players for their dedication and persistence throughout the year. It was a truly special year with great camaraderie and I am proud of all their efforts. My genuine hope is that a core group of players remain in place to chase back to back premierships next season.

Michael English Fourth Grade Coach

### 5th Grade Men (SL1)

The self-proclaimed "People's Team" of the best hockey club in the world, that is what we call ourselves, with good reason too. Having claimed the top prize last year, big things were again expected of us in 2019. Could we deliver the goods? Spoiler alert ... we fell short, only just!

Rewind 18 weeks to club selections, everyone from PL2 to SL5 holding their breath to see who would have the honour of serving SL1 for the year. With only a handful of changes from the previous year the squad for 2019 was a mix of representative homegrown young guns and experienced players who have represented their state & country! Name a better combination ... I'll wait.

So the stage was set for some amazing hockey and a few quiet beverages of the adult type. Straight out of the blocks in Round 1 we let Monterey know we meant business with a strong 8-1 win. Next up Northern Districts put up a little more fight however we were too strong once again winning 6-1. It was almost like watching groundhog day. Week in week out the boys were coming together and becoming stronger as a team, recording some huge wins, quite a few in double digits. The boys were relentless in the pursuit of goals, racking up 105 for the season, 39 more than second place on the ladder. I know what you're thinking, our defence must have been ordinary? Not even close, goals against? Only 14 of which a handful were own goals scored by someone playing in SL2 who shall not be named, however their first name starts with G and last starting with F. It was always going to happen, and it did. We were crowned Minor Premiers a few rounds before the pool games even wrapped up.

So you're thinking, where did it go wrong for us? Well it didn't really. Manly had been our bogey team throughout the rounds and as a result we had drawn both our pool games against them. We had a convincing win against Manly in our qualifying final however we also knew we would see them once more.

The stage was set for a huge Grand Final. Both sides ready to give it their all. The game was an absolute arm wrestle with the lead changing more than once. Full time and we couldn't be separated. First half drop offs still couldn't produce a result. By the second half of drop offs, both sides were walking wounded with numerous injuries and players cramping. In the dying minutes Manly snuck one home and it was over. We were beaten by a side that was better than us on the day. Hand on heart, likely to be the hardest game some of us have ever played, however so glad to have been able to play it.

Although it was a tough way to end the season, the toughest part of it was the fact that it had to end, the season that is. We are called the People's team for a reason. The sportsmanship on the field and friendship off the field is what sets us apart from the pack. With mandatory shoe-y requirements for owners of new wheels, to having to drink out of our unwashed/unsterilized custom made best and fairest trophy, the memories are priceless.

Once again we were blessed to have some extremely talented juniors who were open to learn and interact, coupled with the usual senior suspects who created an environment of learning and progression.

Congratulations to all the SL1 players for an outstanding season of hockey. We may have taken out the silver, but there's no denying the lads have hearts of gold.

Mannu Singh Fifth Grade Manager

#### 6th Grade Men - White (SL2)

This year saw another bumper season for the Panther men. We were able to field teams in every grade and such was our abundance of players that we fielded two teams in SL2, Ryde White and Ryde Black. Both teams had successful campaigns and finished the regular season in 2<sup>nd</sup> and 4<sup>th</sup> positions respectively. The tussles between the two Ryde teams in the rounds were some of the most competitive clashes for both teams.

After the semi-finals were concluded Ryde White successfully made it to the grand final where we defeated Briars in a shootout after regular time could not separate the teams who scored a goal each. Congratulations to the lads for an enjoyable and hard fought victory.

This year, we enjoyed the luxury of having Craig (Sniper) Williams coaching the side. We were able to experiment with flexible structures, playing without a goalkeeper for short periods and playing with reduced numbers to simulate suspensions. This held us in good stead and kept our players on their toes throughout the season. We again had a great balance of youth and experience which is a hallmark of Ryde Hunters Hill District Hockey Club. We enjoyed watching the development of our youngsters and look forward to cheering them on in the higher grades next season and beyond. We also benefitted from the experience of our elder statesmen at times where a steady hand was required.

We also welcomed a few new players to the Club who found themselves in our squad and who enjoyed the traditional welcome at New Player's night. Again, attendance at training was steady although we did experience a lull mid-way through the season.

We are all looking forward to a tilt at defending the SL2 title next season resplendent in our updated uniform.

Well done Champions! Muz

### 6th Grade Men - Black (SL2)

A strong but varied season of hockey for an extremely well balanced and formidable squad in the 2019 Ryde Black SL2 men's team. As Ryde entered two teams in the SL2 grade, this was the first year in this division for most of the team members who were playing up from SL3.

A number of SL3 "Legends" (Glen Castensen, Rob Egger, Teaj Sian, Mark Studd and Manjit Gill) returned for another season; our contingent of "fit & fast" players (Stephen Burns, Ben Warton, Liam O'Shea, Scott Madycki and Alex Perry) came back and were joined by other strong players from across the club (Andrew Taylor, Manuel de Miguel, Tim Atkinson, Nick Edwards, Sam Toms and Kamal Naqvi).

The line-up of teams in our grade included the usual suspects of strong opposition teams such as Briars, our extremely formidable other SL2 team (Ryde White), Bentstix, Easts and St George. Sutherland had a very strong 2<sup>nd</sup> half of the season in the lead up to the finals and almost pipped us at the post to make the top 4 for the semi-finals.

Our team had a solid run through the season, dominating many of our games and holding our own against the stronger teams including Briars and our Ryde White team. We finished 4<sup>th</sup> on the ladder and played Bentstix in the semi-final on 24<sup>th</sup> August at Homebush. During the season we had drawn against them 2-2 and beaten them 2-0. The semi-final was an end to end game with plenty of attack from both teams. We had the majority of play in the first half and came off the field 1-1 at half-time thanks to a cracking goal from Kamal Naqvi from a short corner. To their credit, Bentstix played a very attacking and active 2<sup>nd</sup> half and put another goal in that we just could not counter. They held on to go into the Final against Briars the following week. That was the conclusion of our season and as stated before, a solid performance from a team who, on the whole, were playing up a grade from previous seasons.

Top Goal Scorers for the season:

17 goalsNick Edwards10 goalsKamal Naqvi9 goalsTim Atkinson7 goalsLiam O'Shea5 goalsManjit Gill4 goalsRob Egger

Teaj Sian Sixth Grade Manager

### 7th Grade Men (SL3)

2019 promised to be a good year with the nucleus of the 2018 Premiership winning team returning to defend the clean sheet of 2018. The team that comprised a mix of experience and youth opened the season with an emphatic 9 - 0 victory over an undermanned UTS side. The goals scorers were widespread with Matt Hayden scoring a hat trick and evergreen John Cullen a double.

From this first game it became obvious that this team possessed the essentials to do very well – score goals, put other teams to the sword as they tired and supported each other when the going got tough.

Through the first round of nine games this Ryde team had the envious record of maintaining a clean sheet with win/loss ratio of 9/0 and averaging 4.33 goals per game. Goal scorers at this stage were spread evenly amongst the strikers. A highlight was when Chris Bedford in Round 8 scored his maiden goal. This type of form must also be attributed to the tireless work of the team's midfield and defence that worked tenaciously to repel attacks when under extreme pressure. The midfield lad by John Cullen, was ably supported by Matt Gough and Chris Bedford. The work done by goalkeeper Luca Thomas in the net at times was inspirational.

Through the early part of the second half of the season the 7<sup>th</sup> graders continued rolling off consecutive wins until they came up against a rejuvenated NSW/Baulkham Hills where they found they were down 0 - 2 in the first 12 minutes. The team's experience saw them regroup and maintain unbroken streak. Glebe was the next opponent and again Ryde allowed the opposition a two-goal lead before exerting their dominance to score the 14<sup>th</sup> win.

At the end of Round 18, 7<sup>th</sup> Grade had the enviable record of 18 wins and 87 goals scored and Minor Premiers. At this time the stage was set for an engaging final series with any one of the top four sides on their day could challenge for the title. 7th Grade played Briars in the major Semi Final while not at full strength and brought home a 3 - 1 win with John Cullen, Scott MacDonald and Carlin Williamson scoring.

Unfortunately, our winning run came to an end in the Grand Final, where we came up against a resurgent Briars side who managed to score a 4 - 3 win in a very tight game.

It would be remiss of me not to acknowledge the willingness of Kevin Li, Matt Hayden, Lachlan Wilson and Henry Taylor to support the team throughout the year.

The best and fairest this year saw a worthy result with Jackson Rickard (12 votes) taking the honours from Luca Thomas, Warren Oakes and Matt Gough all on ten votes. Top goal scorers were Scott MacDonald (17), Simon Tan (14), Jackson Rickard 14 and Carlin Williamson 11.

Given the capability and competitiveness of this group of players more success should come their way in 2020. Make the 2020 premiership ours by continuing the commitment already shown.

I want to thank everyone who contributed to this great result.

Robert Thompson 7th Grade Coach and Manager

### 8th Grade Men (SL4)

Grand Final Winners! Season – 20 games played 16 won, 2 drawn 2 lost 90 goals for and 27 against

In all respects a good season, on the scoreboard, in the style of play and in the fun and camaraderie of this family-based team. The team was a Fathers and Sons team plus a mix of players from prior years and those new to Ryde. This meant we had an age range from 15 to 57 including 5 sets of fathers and sons. The family feel and team spirit was good. It quickly became clear that we could have a crack side and that if the team "gelled" it would be a fun year.

The first game was a bit of a struggle only beating a keeperless Monterey 3-2. Consensus was that we lacked a run and the combinations weren't quite there. We soon put that right with a next up 9-1 win over Northern Districts. For the second year running we uncovered a couple of strikers in Matt Hayden, Luke Welsman and the evergreen Andrew Wilson top scorer for the team with 19 goals. The ever-present Kevin Li from inner joining the strikers with 10 goals.

It was a trend that continued with an average of six goals a game for the first round. It wasn't down to one player to score the goals. Goals came from everywhere with the season seeing four players get over 10 goals and a total of 11 players getting on the score sheet multiple times. A true team performance. But it was not all one way, the ball does not just appear for the strikers to score and it was the short passing game that became the team's objective and made us the proudest. This is especially so of the game against St George at Kyeemagh that all of those who played remember with awe. The opposition team had been sprinkled with players from the higher grades and they were travelling well in the competition, but they were left wondering as the passes kept on flowing and going to a running Ryde player. This style of game was championed by our experienced centre-half Mark Richard, who seemingly mystified the opposition to keep the ball moving forward through the centre. And with him to "feed the beasts" up front were the inners and half line. The inners and wingers never stopped running and were the crucial link-men; Darren Morris, Henry Taylor, Lachlan Wilson and Neyif Hanna. However, it wasn't all going our way, there was a tendency to leak an easy goal each game which would come to haunt us later.

In the second half of the season we took our eye off the ball a little and the opposition were hitting their strides and had a game plan to combat us. This involved double teaming our strikers and playing with a high fast forward and relying on a long ball game. This was when those at the back stepped up and after a couple of losses and draws we decided on a re-arrangement of players and formation to provide some speed and structure to deny the high forward opportunity and stifle the long ball. This re-established our passing game and confidence leading into the finals. The half-line was Duncan Taylor, Chris (Pirate) Richard and the third of our 15-year olds Jay Campbell. The defensive backs Graham Symes, Tim Campbell and Ken Campbell (perhaps not the most mobile but made up for it in hockey smarts) supported by Henry Taylor to provide the speed as the attacking back. A special mention to our goalie Harry Symes. The team would like to thank the many other players who helped us out during the year. We had a total of 15 additional players helped out during the year and they stood up and contributed to the season it was. There are many stories from the year, but the best is undoubtedly the recognition of opportunities to improve and the implementation of a different team arrangement to prevail and win the Grand Final.

It was a great season and one we will remember not so much for the results but more for the concept of a fathers and sons team and the friendships forged. I hope that should the opportunity arise again that such a team should be promoted, as the concept underpins the family nature and atmosphere of the Ryde club.

Mark Richard Eighth Grade Manager

#### 9th Grade Men - White (SL5)

2019 was a great season, on the scoreboard, in the style of play and in the fun and camaraderie of the team considering that we played over half of games on a cold dark Saturday night (we got a few daylight games but its seemed we preferred the dark).

The team was a mix of not so young though very experienced long-term club stalwarts and new players to our club. This mixture allowed the side to gel quickly and it became apparent that we would be very competitive.

Our first game resulted in us recording our first win with an 8-1 win over Bentstix; they only scored as we allowed Sniper (our keeper) to remove the pads and play as a striker. We progressed slowly throughout the 1<sup>st</sup> half of the season and recorded some great wins and we lost some games that when shouldn't have (though we won both games against the SL5 Black team). These games were great fun and it showed that both teams played with fantastic sportsmanship with BBQs afterwards. On the statistics side of things, we had 12 wins 2 draws and 7 losses.

We finished the regular season in 4<sup>th</sup> place as a result of having some consistent performances where we had a late season winning streak of five games, going into the finals where we played against Briars (win), Wests (win) and Tartans in the Grand Final where we, unfortunately lost in extra time.

It was great to have ex 1<sup>st</sup> grader Matthew Topfer return to playing after several years off though Matt was unfortunate with injury which cut short his season, luckily he was able to play in the finals. Matt made up for his absence by bringing his experience and combination with Steve Dunn in the midfield; this allowed Dunny to play in a more attacking role.

There were some noticeable performances from all players. It was great to have both Dunny and Sniper in the squad as this allowed for some sharing of ideas on team performances and playing structure. It was a great season and one we will always remember for the results but more, the friendships forged.

Cheers

Gav Hughes Manager

### 9th Grade Men - Black (SL5)

Our 2019 started out well with many new faces to the team. It didn't take long to find and groove and we started getting wins under our belt. We were half way through our season when we lost a few key players to injuries and sickness in those 50/50 games which cost us at the end of the season. We finished the season 7th with 7 wins 4 draws and 7 loses.

We are grateful for the Ryde members who put their hands up and helped out when numbers where short. I know it's hard work playing two games back to back.

I especially enjoyed playing and watching the Ryde Vs Ryde games - these were played with extreme passion and great sportsmanship.

I'd also like to thank the boys for turning up each week and putting in 100% and would love to see everyone back next year.

Regards Neyif Hanna Manager

# Results

# Women's ML1

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Sydney Uni 1	18	12	2	4	50	20	30	38
RHH 1	18	11	4	3	67	34	33	37
GNS 1	18	11	3	4	50	17	33	36
Moorebank 1	18	9	5	4	47	29	18	32
UNSW 1	18	7	5	6	50	38	12	26
WD 1	18	8	2	8	43	35	8	26
ND Strikers 1	18	5	4	9	29	47	-18	19
Mac/Btown 1	18	4	2	12	34	76	-42	14
Briars 1	18	2	7	9	19	56	-37	13
UTS 1	18	3	2	13	23	60	-37	11

### Women's ML2

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Moorebank 2	18	11	6	1	42	18	24	39
Sydney Uni 2	18	10	5	3	39	16	23	35
Glebe 1	18	10	2	6	29	19	10	32
GNS 2	18	9	5	4	34	26	8	32
UNSW 2	18	8	5	5	37	24	13	29
Macquarie Uni 1	18	7	6	5	26	20	6	27
UTS 2	18	5	3	10	11	33	-22	18
Mac/Btown 2	18	5	1	12	18	30	-12	16
RHH 2	18	2	7	9	24	37	-13	13
WD 2	18	2	2	14	5	42	-37	8

### Women's ML4

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Sydney Uni 4	18	16	1	1	43	18	25	49
Moorebank 4	18	13	2	3	38	18	20	41
RHH 3	18	10	2	6	42	29	13	32
MosHarbour 2	18	9	4	5	26	15	11	31
Macquarie Uni 2	18	6	7	5	33	29	4	25
Glebe 3	18	7	2	9	31	29	2	23
Mac/Btown 3	18	5	4	9	27	32	-5	19
ND Strikers 3	18	4	4	10	22	36	-14	16
Briars 3	18	4	3	11	20	35	-15	15
Manly 2	18	1	1	16	13	54	-41	4

# Women's ML5

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
MosHarbour 3	18	10	6	2	29	13	16	36
Sydney Uni 5	18	10	4	4	43	20	23	34
Cronulla Sharks	18	9	5	4	30	21	9	32
Wenty 2	18	8	4	6	26	19	7	28
RHH 4	18	8	4	6	22	15	7	28
Macquarie Uni 3	18	6	5	7	23	27	-4	23
St George	18	5	7	6	31	25	6	22
Glebe 4	18	6	2	10	30	40	-10	20
ND Strikers 4	18	4	4	10	15	30	-15	16
Briars 4	18	2	3	13	11	50	-39	9

### Women's ML6

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Moorebank 5	18	14	1	3	40	15	25	43
RHH 5	18	12	2	4	25	12	13	38
UNSW 4	18	11	4	3	32	21	11	37
Mac/Btown 4	18	10	2	6	37	21	16	32
MosHarbour 4	18	9	4	5	39	19	20	31
Sydney Uni 6	18	5	7	6	20	17	3	22
ND Strikers 5	18	4	6	8	17	25	-8	18
GNS 4	18	2	5	11	10	38	-28	11
Glebe 5	18	1	7	10	12	30	-18	10
Canterbury	18	3	0	15	13	47	-34	9

### Women's NWS B

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	BYEs	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Manly Manly 3	14	10	1	3	0	32	10	22	31
Mirrabooka MirraBarker	14	10	1	3	0	46	25	21	31
UTS UTS et	14	8	2	4	0	29	22	7	26
UTS UTS 4	14	6	4	3	0	23	29	-6	25
RHHC RHH 6	14	3	6	5	0	12	13	-1	15
Norths Womens Hockey Red Bears	14	2	5	6	0	15	31	-16	14
SUHC Syd Uni 7	14	3	3	8	0	16	17	-1	12
MUHC Mac Uni 4	14	1	4	9	0	10	36	-26	7

### Women's NWS D

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	BYEs	For	Against	Diff.	Bonus	Points
Northern District Hockey Club NDS Gold	14	10	1	3	0	32	11	21	0	31
SUHC Syd Uni 9	14	9	1	4	0	34	16	18	0	28
Briars Briars 5	14	8	2	4	0	12	10	2	0	26
Hornsby Hockey Hornsby 3	14	6	2	6	0	16	15	1	0	20
RHHC RHH 7	14	6	1	7	0	16	13	3	0	19
MUHC Mac Uni 5	14	5	2	7	0	17	21	-4	0	17
Norths Womens Hockey Black Bears	14	4	1	9	0	22	29	-7	0	13
Baulkham Hills Hockey Club BHills 2	14	2	2	10	0	8	42	-34	0	8

# Men's - PL1

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Moorebank Liverpool	18	16	2	0	98	11	87	50
Sutherland	18	12	4	2	88	29	59	40
NWS/BH	18	12	2	4	80	30	50	38
UNSW	18	11	3	4	70	31	39	36
Ryde HH	18	11	2	5	76	34	42	35
Sydney Uni	18	5	1	12	37	60	-23	16
Briars	18	4	1	13	25	75	-50	13
Glebe	18	4	1	13	23	77	-54	13
GNS	18	4	1	13	28	83	-55	13
Northern Districts	18	2	1	15	20	115	-95	7

### Men's - PL2

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Moorebank Liverpool	18	16	1	1	101	20	81	49
UNSW	18	15	1	2	79	29	50	46
Sutherland	18	14	1	3	72	28	44	43
Sydney Uni	18	10	2	6	49	39	10	32
Ryde HH	18	9	2	7	46	45	1	29
Briars	18	8	1	9	45	51	-6	25
Macquarie Uni	18	7	0	11	28	39	-11	21
St George/Rand	18	6	2	10	34	62	-28	20
UTS	18	4	3	11	36	58	-22	15
Glebe	18	4	2	12	35	64	-29	14
NWS/BH	18	3	4	11	32	53	-21	13
GNS	18	1	3	14	17	86	-69	6

# Men's - PL3

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Easts	18	13	3	2	69	31	38	42
Ryde HH	18	12	4	2	61	27	34	40
Sydney Uni	18	10	2	6	37	31	6	32
Sutherland	18	9	4	5	50	30	20	31
Moorebank Liverpool	18	9	4	5	40	29	11	31
Briars	18	8	5	5	42	31	11	29
Glebe	18	7	6	5	55	41	14	27
UNSW	18	6	6	6	37	31	6	24
Northern Districts	18	3	9	6	22	26	-4	18
Macquarie Uni	18	3	5	10	27	52	-25	14
UTS	18	3	1	14	23	70	-47	10
St George/Rand	18	0	1	17	13	77	-64	1

# Men's - PL4

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Ryde HH	18	16	1	1	73	13	60	49
Easts	18	14	1	3	69	22	47	43
GNS	18	12	0	6	55	34	21	36
Sutherland	18	10	3	5	32	13	19	33
Sydney Uni	18	10	3	5	32	25	7	33
UNSW	18	10	2	6	46	25	21	32
Briars	18	8	1	9	41	36	5	25
Northern Districts	18	6	3	9	36	42	-6	21
NWS/BH	18	6	2	5	26	61	-35	20
Glebe	18	3	2	13	18	44	-26	11
Moorebank Liverpool	18	1	3	14	14	70	-56	6
UTS	18	1	1	15	16	73	-57	4

# Men's - SL1

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Ryde HH	18	15	2	1	105	14	91	47
Manly	18	14	2	2	66	25	41	44
UNSW	18	11	2	5	59	39	20	35
Sutherland	18	10	3	5	50	31	19	33
Bankstown	18	8	0	10	43	66	-23	24
Macquarie Uni	18	6	4	8	29	32	-3	22
St George/Rand	18	5	2	11	35	67	-32	17
Monterey	18	5	2	11	35	75	-40	17
Northern Districts	18	3	3	12	23	58	-35	12
Sydney Uni	18	1	4	13	20	58	-38	7

# Men's - SL2

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Briars	18	15	1	2	94	21	73	46
Ryde White	18	14	2	2	79	22	57	44
Bentstix	18	11	3	4	65	22	43	36
Ryde Black	18	11	2	5	65	33	32	35
Sutherland	18	10	0	8	43	48	-5	30
Easts	18	7	3	8	56	36	20	24
UTS	18	6	2	10	35	58	-23	20
St George/Rand	18	5	4	9	37	52	-15	19
Sydney Uni	18	2	0	16	14	109	-95	6
Moorebank Liverpool	18	0	1	17	11	98	-87	1

# Men's - SL3

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Ryde HH	18	18	0	0	87	21	66	54
Briars	18	12	1	5	61	31	30	37
Glebe	18	12	1	5	57	28	29	37
NWS/Baulkham Hills	18	10	4	4	61	30	31	34
Manly	18	8	0	10	56	55	1	24
Sutherland	18	8	0	10	33	49	-16	24
UNSW	18	6	0	12	30	44	-14	18
Northern Districts	18	5	1	12	32	52	-20	16
Bankstown	18	5	1	11	32	65	-33	16
UTS	18	1	0	16	7	81	-74	3

# Men's - SL4

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Monterey	18	16	0	2	72	23	49	48
Ryde HH	18	14	2	2	85	26	59	44
St George/Rand	18	12	2	4	55	23	32	38
Macquarie Uni	18	12	2	4	51	23	28	38
Manly	18	7	2	9	27	36	-9	23
Sutherland	18	6	2	10	25	37	-12	20
Bentstix	18	6	1	11	17	34	-17	19
NWS/Baulkham Hills	18	4	2	12	21	53	-32	14
UNSW	18	3	2	13	20	58	-38	11
Northern Districts	18	2	1	15	14	74	-60	7

# Men's - SL5

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Tartans	18	16	1	1	69	13	56	49
Wests	18	11	0	7	52	31	21	33
Briars	18	10	2	6	70	29	41	32
Ryde White	18	10	2	6	47	22	25	32
Easts	18	10	2	6	39	36	3	32
Sydney Uni	18	8	2	8	35	31	4	26
Ryde Black	18	7	4	7	45	34	11	25
GNS	18	6	4	8	25	32	-7	22
Bankstown	18	3	1	14	19	63	-44	10
Bentstix	18	0	0	18	6	116	-110	0

# Men's Masters - Premier League

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	Forfeits	BYEs	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Ryde 1	15	11	0	4	0	0	51	38	13	33
Sydney University 1	15	8	3	4	0	0	51	24	27	27
Briars 1	15	7	4	4	0	0	54	32	22	25
UTS 1	15	7	3	5	0	0	39	26	13	24
Manly 1	15	6	0	9	0	0	42	52	-10	18
Penrith 1	15	1	0	14	0	0	20	85	-65	3

# Men's Masters - Sydney Cup

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	Forfeits	BYEs	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Sydney University 2	14	9	3	2	0	0	57	25	32	30
Ryde 2	14	9	3	2	0	0	53	21	32	30
Gordon North Sydney 1	14	7	3	4	0	0	44	25	19	24
Briars 2	14	6	1	7	0	0	41	40	1	19
UTS 2	14	6	1	7	0	0	37	59	-22	19
Macarthur 1	14	4	1	9	0	1	33	63	-30	13
Northern Districts	14	2	0	12	0	0	32	64	-32	6

# Men's Masters - Masters League

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	Forfeits	BYEs	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Ryde 3	14	10	2	2	0	0	39	14	25	32
Sutherland 1	14	9	3	2	0	1	37	13	24	30
Sydney University 3	14	7	3	4	0	0	19	17	2	24
Penrith 2	14	4	4	6	0	0	20	24	-4	16
Macarthur 2	14	4	4	6	0	0	15	23	-8	16
Manly 2	14	5	0	9	0	0	24	39	-15	15
Ryde 4	14	1	2	11	0	0	11	35	-24	5

Team	Played	Wins	Draws	Losses	Forfeits	BYEs	For	Against	Diff.	Points
Easts	12	10	2	0	0	0	58	21	37	32
Sydney University 4	13	7	1	5	0	0	25	21	4	22
Northern Districts 2	13	7	1	5	0	0	28	28	0	22
Sutherland 2	12	4	3	5	0	0	20	20	0	15
Briars 3	12	3	5	4	0	0	28	25	3	14
Northside	13	4	3	6	0	0	16	23	-7	15
Macarthur 3	13	4	1	8	0	0	17	35	-18	13
Ryde 5	12	2	2	8	0	0	7	26	-19	8

### Juniors - Under 11 - A

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Вуе	For	Against	+/-	Points
Ryde Panthers	15	13	1	1	0	85	16	69	55
ND Gold	15	12	3	0	0	100	28	72	51
GNS Red	15	6	6	3	0	37	44	-7	36
Briars	15	5	9	1	0	41	62	-21	31
UTS	15	3	10	2	0	22	64	-42	26
Manly Geckos	15	2	12	1	0	21	92	-71	22

### Juniors - Under 11 - B

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
Mosman	15	13	2	0	0	87	11	76	54
Manly Kangas	15	10	4	1	0	38	32	6	46
BHills Gold	15	9	3	3	0	68	21	47	45
Ryde Tigers	15	7	7	1	0	41	45	-4	37
ND Green	15	2	13	0	0	15	85	-70	21
UTS	15	1	13	1	0	6	61	-55	18

UTS (-1): May 25th forfeit by UTS

### Juniors - Under 11 - C

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Вуе	For	Against	+/-	Points
Wenty	18	14	1	3	0	70	8	62	65
Briars Gold	18	14	3	1	0	60	14	46	61
GNS White	18	11	2	5	0	41	21	20	56
GNS Blue	18	10	4	4	0	46	15	31	52
KL	18	9	6	3	0	47	43	4	48
Briars Maroon	18	5	9	4	0	28	40	-12	37
BHills Red	18	5	11	2	0	23	42	-19	35
Ryde Lions	18	4	11	3	0	22	62	-40	32
ND White	18	2	13	3	0	15	62	-47	26
ND Blue	18	2	16	0	0	10	55	-45	24

Wenty (+2): Round 3 Win Points Adjustment as results captured as 0-0 draw with UTS replaced by GNS Blue).

**Ryde Lions (-1)**: Round 2 Loss Points Adjustment as results captured as 0-0 draw with UTS replaced by GNS Blue). **ND White (-1)**: Round 1 Loss Points Adjustment as results captured as 0-0 draw with UTS replaced by GNS Blue).

## Juniors - Under 13 - A

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Вуе	For	Against	+/-	Points
Ryde Panthers	14	11	1	2	3	79	13	66	55
Briars	13	6	4	3	4	40	30	10	42
ND Gold	14	6	6	2	3	23	33	-10	40
Manly	13	5	8	0	4	18	44	-26	36
GNS Red	14	1	10	3	3	5	45	-40	26

### Juniors - Under 13 - B

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Вуе	For	Against	+/-	Points
Mosman	17	9	2	6	1	51	15	36	52
Manly	16	8	1	7	2	34	10	24	51
BHills Gold	16	9	4	3	2	37	18	19	50
ND Green	16	7	4	5	2	24	19	5	46
Ryde Lions	16	4	7	5	2	23	24	-1	37
Ryde Tigers	15	4	7	4	3	24	25	-1	37
KL/UTS	15	1	14	0	3	5	69	-64	24

## Juniors - Under 13 - C

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Вуе	For	Against	+/-	Points
ND Blue	17	11	4	2	1	50	21	29	54
Briars	18	11	6	1	0	58	33	25	51
Manly	17	10	4	3	1	44	26	18	51
GNS Blue	18	5	9	4	0	15	45	-30	40
Ryde Jaguars	18	4	10	4	0	21	50	-29	34
BHills Red	17	2	13	2	1	10	41	-31	27

Briars (-1): Forfeit Round 3.

Manly (-1): Jul 5th forfeit by Manly

GNS Blue (+3): +3 Points to create equivalent of 6 BYE Points in U13C from their 3 losses in U13B Comp.

# Juniors - Under 15 - A (Metro)

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Bye	For	Against	+/-	Points
Ryde	16	15	1	0	2	97	16	81	45
Mosman	15	9	4	2	3	54	29	25	29
Briars	16	9	5	2	2	57	33	24	29
Sutherland	16	8	6	2	2	34	33	1	26
Manly/GNS	15	3	7	5	3	32	50	-18	14
ND Metro	15	3	11	1	3	19	57	-38	10
Glebe	15	1	14	0	3	8	83	-75	3

### Juniors - Under 15 - B

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Вуе	For	Against	+/-	Points
Ryde Tigers	15	13	1	1	0	74	7	67	55
GNS Red	15	12	3	0	0	56	21	35	51
BHills Gold	15	10	2	3	0	26	16	10	48
Mosman White	15	7	6	2	0	24	27	-3	38
KL/UTS	15	6	8	1	0	17	32	-15	34
Manly	15	5	9	1	0	24	39	-15	31
Mosman Blue	15	2	12	1	0	10	47	-37	20
ND Green	15	0	14	1	0	11	53	-42	16

Mosman Blue (-1): June 26th forfeit by Mosman Blue

Mosman Blue (-1): Aug 2nd forfeit by Mosman Blue.

### Juniors - Under 15 - C

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Вуе	For	Against	+/-	Points
GNS Blue	14	11	3	0	4	57	12	45	55
Briars	15	11	3	1	3	51	13	38	55
Ryde Lions	15	8	7	0	3	25	31	-6	45
BHills Red	14	4	9	1	4	13	51	-38	35
ND Blue	14	1	13	0	4	9	48	-39	24

ND Blue (-1): June 21st forfeit by ND Blue

# Juniors - Under 17 - A (Metro)

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Вуе	For	Against	+/-	Points
Sutherland	15	12	1	2	3	52	9	43	38
Briars	15	9	5	1	3	59	30	29	28
ND Metro	14	7	6	1	4	41	25	16	22
Ryde	14	5	9	0	4	21	37	-16	15
Glebe	14	1	13	0	4	6	78	-72	3

## Juniors - Under 17 - B

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Вуе	For	Against	+/-	Points
Manly Redhawks	15	8	5	2	0	32	23	9	41
Ryde Tigers	15	8	5	2	0	30	24	6	41
GNS Red	15	7	6	2	0	31	23	8	38
KL/UTS	15	2	9	4	0	7	30	-23	25

## Juniors - Under 17 - C

Team	Played	Win	Loss	Draw	Вуе	For	Against	+/-	Points
BHills Gold	14	8	3	3	3	38	9	29	47
Ryde Lions	14	7	3	4	3	24	15	9	45
Briars	14	7	3	4	3	33	10	23	44
ND Green	13	4	6	3	4	24	19	5	36
GNS Blue	13	0	11	2	4	1	67	-66	22

Briars (-1) : Jul 5th forfeit by Briars

GNS Blue (-1) : Jul 5th forfeit by GNS Blue

Women's and Men's Records

2019					GAME	S							G	DALS			
Name	Bfwd	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	Total	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	Total
ABREU L	0	0	7	13	0	0	0	0	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
ARMSTRONG M	27	0	0	0	0	14	1	0	42	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1
BEATON K	0	3	13	0	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BENNETT C	126	0	0	6	14	0	0	0	146	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BENNETT Carly	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BENSON S	79	0	0	0	0	0	0	13	92	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BLAMEY M	82	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	100	9	0	0	0	0	0	0	9
BOULIS J	0	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	16	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	2
BRUNTON L	32	0	0	1	9	1	0	0	43	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BURNET C	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1
CADE K	41	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	42	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
CADE R	18	0	0	2	14	0	0	0	34	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	2
CADE T	32	0	1	17	0	0	0	0	50	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
CADORIN I	89	0	6	8	0	0	0	0	103	0	1	4	0	0	0	0	5
CAMPEY E	77	18	1	0	0	0	0	0	96	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	7
CARLAW G	0	0	0	0	0	18	0	0	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
CARROTHERS M	18	11	3	0	0	0	0	0	32	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
COBBY A	91	0	0	0	13	1	2	0	107	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
COUTTS S	90	0	7	0	0	0	0	0	97	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DAINTY M	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	2	16	0	0	0	0	0	3	1	4
DALE K	28	0	0	0	0	0	11	1	40	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DAWSON Renee	256	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	273	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1
DELAVERE K	11	0	0	0	0	13	0	0	24	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DOBBIN J	274	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	280	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DUNCAN K	244	0	0	0	0	16	11	1	272	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	2
DWYER G	191	17	3	0	0	0	0	0	211	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
EAGLETON H	54	0	0	16	4	0	0	0	74	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
EAGLETON K	49	0	0	0	18	1	0	0	68	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	5
EDWARDS D	18	0	0	0	0	0	1	11	30	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1

	-		-				r	r				-					
ELLIS S	201	0	0	0	0	19	2	0	222	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1
ERASMUS L	23	1	14	4	0	0	0	0	42	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	2
FARQUHARSON N	16	6	16	0	0	0	0	0	38	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	2
FAULKNER P	33	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	33	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
FAWLE H	16	6	16	0	0	0	0	0	38	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
FISCHER-STOESS C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
FLOKSTRA R	27	0	2	11	0	5	0	0	45	0	0	16	0	0	0	0	16
GAMMIE A	133	0	0	0	0	0	0	13	146	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GIAQUINTO M	688	0	0	0	0	19	0	0	707	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	5
GILLARD A	39	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	57	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GOMBAULT L	0	0	0	0	6	14	0	0	20	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1
GOODCHILD H	127	0	0	1	4	0	0	0	132	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	2
GREEN B	186	0	9	13	0	0	0	0	208	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GREEN T	163	0	0	10	0	0	0	0	173	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GREEN Tiana	42	0	0	8	18	0	0	0	68	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GRIFFITHS T	148	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	152	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GUERRERO C	48	0	0	0	0	3	14	3	68	0	0	0	0	1	3	1	5
но к	59	0	0	12	0	0	0	0	71	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
INGHAM S	0	0	0	4	0	2	0	0	6	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	3
JACKSON E	0	9	14	4	0	2	0	0	29	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
JORDAN A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
KELLY E	345	0	0	0	0	19	0	0	364	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1
KENNEDY Kate	16	0	15	0	0	0	0	0	31	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
KEOGH T	15	0	0	0	0	0	2	11	28	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2
LEE T	68	0	0	0	0	0	12	0	80	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
LEIJER S	17	0	0	0	14	1	0	0	32	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
LEWIS M	0	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
LOWE S	68	0	0	7	9	0	0	0	84	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	3
MACMILLAN Z	31	3	13	0	0	0	0	0	47	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	3
MADIN B	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	23	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
MANUEL J	171	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	192	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1

MARAIS C	21	0	0	4	15	1	0	0	41	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
MAY L	17	0	4	18	0	0	0	0	39	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
MAY M	15	2	15	0	0	0	0	0	32	1	6	0	0	0	0	0	7
MEECH A	21	5	12	3	0	0	0	0	41	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
MURRAY S	68	0	0	0	0	0	7	11	86	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	5
NASH S	46	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	57	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
NERINCKX J	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	0	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
NEWMAN Z	66	15	1	0	0	0	0	0	82	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
NEYERTZ F	32	0	0	0	15	0	0	0	47	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
NICHOLL K	155	18	1	0	0	0	0	0	174	7	1	0	0	0	0	0	8
NOWAKOWSKI K	20	0	0	0	0	0	3	11	34	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
O'BRIEN H	29	0	2	13	0	0	0	0	44	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
O'HIGGINS R	0	0	0	0	0	16	1	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
O'SULLIVAN K	38	0	0	11	0	0	0	0	49	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	3
O'SULLIVAN R	41	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	55	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	3
PARKER J	16	0	0	0	0	0	14	2	32	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
PARKES S	130	0	1	16	0	0	0	0	147	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
PASFIELD L	176	0	0	0	4	15	11	0	206	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
PATTERSON M	33	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	53	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
PICKERING L	16	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	35	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
PRIDDY L	149	0	0	0	0	17	1	0	167	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	3
PROSSER J	41	0	0	0	2	15	0	0	58	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
QUILTY P	678	0	0	0	0	16	1	0	695	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1
RETFORD K	400	0	0	0	18	1	2	0	421	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	3
RICHMOND G	0	0	1	16	2	0	0	0	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
RILEY L	22	14	3	0	0	0	0	0	39	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
ROBSON S	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	0	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
RUSHTON K	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
SANDHU S	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	10	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1
SCHUTZ L	69	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	81	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2
SMITH T	0	0	15	2	0	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

F	1		ſ		-		1	r		-	ſ	1					
SPRANGERS M	76	0	0	0	15	0	2	0	93	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	6
STARKEY L	80	0	8	4	0	0	0	0	92	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
TAPSCOTT A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	13	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1
TATE R	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
TATE S	98	0	0	0	0	0	0	8	106	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
TINKER Z	28	0	0	0	0	0	11	2	41	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	2
TROUNG A	291	0	0	15	0	0	0	0	306	0	0	11	0	0	0	0	11
VAN DER POLS B	28	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	45	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
VINKOVIC A	66	0	0	0	0	17	0	0	83	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	5
WADDELL E	16	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	35	9	0	0	0	0	0	0	9
WALSH J	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WALTON K	130	0	1	11	0	0	8	0	150	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1
WARTON N	40	0	0	0	0	0	12	1	53	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	2
WAY E	0	1	6	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	5	0	0	0	0	0	5
WEBBER S	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9	9	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WELLSMAN C	107	0	0	0	0	0	2	11	120	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WILSON A	27	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	45	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	21
WILSON D	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WOODS M	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WOOLLEY A	17	0	0	0	0	0	10	0	27	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WYKER F	14	0	0	0	0	1	11	1	27	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1
WYNN-TAYLOR S	55	19	2	0	0	0	0	0	76	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
ZACHARIAH P	0	0	0	0	0	19	0	0	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

						Gam	ies F	Playe	d									(	Goals					
		B Fwd	1st	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th	7th	8th	9th	Μ	Total	1st 2	2nd	3rd	4th	5th	6th 7	'th	8th	9th	М	Total
AMAT	Amauri	416	0	0	0	0	0	15	0	0	0	12	443	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	7	13
ANSLOW	Glenn	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
APPLEBY	Greg	166	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	180	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1
APPLEBY	Bryan	125	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	13	138	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
APPLEBY	Paul	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
ARTHUR	Kieron	59	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	78	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	18
ATKINSON	Timothy	34	0	0	0	0	0	15	2	0	0	0	51	0	0	0	0	0	9	1	0	0	0	10
AUSTIN	Roger	26	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	15	10	51	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BALDOCK	David	129	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	8	137	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BARKER	Andrew	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	17	0	0	0	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1
BAXTER	Samuel	49	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	17	0	69	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	0	3
BEAN	Jarrod	59	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	19	0	78	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BEATON	Kevin	83	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	95	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2
BEDFORD	Chris	67	0	0	0	0	0	1	16	0	0	0	84	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1
BERKELEY	Alister	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1
BESANVALLE	Steven	223	0	0	0	21	1	0	0	0	0	0	245	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	4
BLACKBURN	lan	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	4	30	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	0	10
BLACKBURN	Joseph	56	0	3	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	76	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BLACKBURN	Eric	29	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	0	41	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BRAID	Sam	86	0	0	0	11	13	1	0	0	0	0	111	0	0	0	3	3	0	0	0	0	0	6
BRAUDE	Alex	250	0	9	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	260	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BRETTELL	Tom	64	0	0	0	0	0	1	17	0	0	0	82	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	3
BROWN	Cam	298	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	314	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
BROWN	Tom	33	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	45	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
BROWN	Jacob	41	0	0	0	0	4	17	0	0	0	0	62	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BUCKHAM	Peter	340	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	354	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BURMAN	Luca	35	0	0	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	49	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	0	0	0	7
BURNS	Steve	223	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	0	240	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
BURTON	Matt	27	0	0	0	0	15	0	0	0	0	11	53	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

BUTLER	Sebastien	50	0	0	14	2	0	0	0	0	0 0	66	0	0	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7
CALLEJA	Charles	759	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	20 12	791	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	7
CAMPBELL	Tim	119	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	0 0	133	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
CAMPBELL	Ken	710	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	18	2 13	743	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
CAMPBELL	Jay	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	16	1 (	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
CAMPEY	Ben	101	0	4	9	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	114	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
CASTENSEN	Glen	453	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	0	0 2	472	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
CATON	Anthony	264	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0 11	277	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	4	5
CHONG	Aidan	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3 (	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
COLEMAN	Christopher	41	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	57	8	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	8
COOMBS	Steven	71	0	0	0	0	17	2	0	0	0 0	90	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
COPE	Lachlan	18	15	9	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	42	5	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9
CORCORAN	Peter	0	0	0	5	20	0	0	0	0	0 0	25	0	0	1	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	5
CORCORAN	Joshua	0	0	0	19	3	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	8	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	9
CORK	Damien	117	0	0	0	0	19	0	0	0	0 0	136	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	0	5
CRONJE	Johan	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	16 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	4	0	5
CROTTY	Owen	416	0	0	0	0	18	1	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
CULEY	Christopher	33	0	9	9	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	51	0	1	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6
CULLEN	Mark	267	0	0	0	0	0	20	0	0	0 0	-	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
CULLEN	Jack	137	0	6	18	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	2	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12
CULLEN	Paul	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	06		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
CULLEN	John	725	0	0	0	0	0	1	14	0	0 11		0	0	0	0	0	0	9	0	0	2	11
CUNHA	Michael	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 4	-	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1
CUNHA	Michael	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	•	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DAHL	Micheal	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	13 13		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DAVENPORT	Geoff	161	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	06		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	5
DENSON	Brodie	112	0	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DILLON	Michael	41	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	• ·	8	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	8
DILLON	Hayden	33	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
DUGGAN	Andrew	82	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0 0	• ·	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DUNN	Steve	615	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	15 15	647	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	12	17

DUNN	Matthew	105	0	1	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	126	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
EDWARDS	Matt	73	0	0	0	1	7	17	0	0	0	0	98	0	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	5
EDWARDS	Nic	98	0	0	0	0	12	18	0	0	0	0	128	0	0	0	0	6	16	0	0	0	0	22
EGGER	Robert	512	0	0	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	14	540	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	2	6
EGGERS	Mark	263	0	0	0	0	0	14	1	0	0	10	288	0	0	0	0	0	6	1	0	0	2	9
ELLIS	Mark	267	0	0	0	1	14	0	0	0	0	11	293	0	0	0	0	8	0	0	0	0	0	8
FAINE	Garth	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
FAMILTON	Scott	658	0	0	0	0	0	2	15	0	0	14	689	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
FARQUHARSON	Stuart	404	0	0	0	0	1	15	0	0	0	17	437	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	2	4
FARQUHARSON	Bruce	93	0	12	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	116	0	4	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	8
FINDLEY	Greg	272	0	0	0	0	5	11	0	0	0	0	288	0	0	0	0	2	16	0	0	0	0	18
FOLEY	James	69	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	11	14	95	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	3	8
FOSTER	James	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	2
FREED	lwan	46	6	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	66	3	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7
GAIT	David	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	8	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	0	3
GALLAGHER	lan	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
GARDNER	Dave	25	0	0	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	39	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	3
GIAQUINTO	Steve	564	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	578	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GILL	Manjit	86	0	0	0	0	0	13	0	0	0	0	99	0	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	5
GODEFROOIJ	Ties	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
GOUGH	Joseph	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	19	0	0	0	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	4
GOUGH	Matthew	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	16	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1
GRAHAM	Mitchell	0	0	0	1	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	18	0	0	0	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	12
GRAHAM	Stephen	105	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	115	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
GRANT	Fraser	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	3
GRAY	Samuel	71	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	86	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
GREAVES	Mark	578	0	0	0	0	18	0	0	0	0	13	609	0	0	0	0	23	0	0	0	0	1	24
GRIFFITH	Andrew	30	0	1	19	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	51	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
GRIFFITHS	Sam	0	0	0	0	0	1	18	0	0	0	0	19	0	0	0	0	0	11	0	0	0	0	11
HAMBLY	Alex	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	15	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	2
HANNA	Neyif	95	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	18	9	0	123	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	9	4	0	14

HARRISON	Scott	166	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 16	182	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	10
HARRISON	Reghyn	100	0	20	8	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	128	0	4	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7
HARRISON	Jaylen	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	0	0	0 0	16	0	0	0	8	0	0	0	0	0	0	8
HAYDEN	Matthew	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	8	1 (	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	6	0	0	10
HAYNES	Andrew	411	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 14	425	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
HITCHCOCK	Liam	31	0	0	0	21	2	1	0	0	0 0	55	0	0	0	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	15
HOWARD	Lachlan	0	2	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	14	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
HUGHES	Gavin	295	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 1	297	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
HUNTER	Alex	20	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	0	0 0	37	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
JOHNSON	Mark	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	06	26	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2
JONES	Alex	156	5	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 11	187	0	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	26
JOSLIN	Rex	132	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 10	142	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
KANG	Dexter	12	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0 0	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
KENNEDY	Laurence	24	0	0	6	19	0	0	0	0	0 0	49	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
KENNEDY	Alexander	55	0	0	0	0	14	4	0	0	0 0	73	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	6
KEOGH	Riley	92	0	1	16	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	109	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
KEOGH	Darcy	71	0	8	18	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	97	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4
KRISHNA	Tristan	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
KRUGER	Koos	168	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 14	182	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
LAMOND	Thomas	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	07	-	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	4
LAVERY	Dylan	80	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
LAVERY	Brendan	118	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	11 8		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	3
LEAR	James	331	0	0	0	0	1	15	0	0	0 14		0	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	6
LEONG	Sean	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 13		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2
LI	Asa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	15 (	-	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
LI	Kevin	254	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	17	1 (		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	0	0	10
LILES	Samuel	85	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4
LONG	Anton	0	0	0	0	0	15	3	0	0	0 10		0	0	0	0	15	2	0	0	0	6	23
LYNCH	Michael	107	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 10		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	3
MACDONALD	Scott	29	0	0	0	0	0	1	15	0	0 10		0	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	0	7	24
MADYCKI	Scott	103	0	0	0	0	0	13	0	0	0 0	116	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2

MALONE	Vincent	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	0	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
MALTMAN	James	119	0	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	4	148	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2
MARTHICK	Kerry	427	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	2	439	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	8	8
MCCOY	Rohan	185	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	190	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1
MCCOY	Simon	118	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	3	131	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2
MCCUBBING	Gus	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	3	0	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	2
MCEWEN	Nicholas	207	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	226	9	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9
MCKAY	Matthew	646	0	0	1	20	1	0	0	0	01	4	682	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	3	4
MCKAY	Lachlan	98	0	0	7	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	116	0	0	2	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	7
MENT	Jarod	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
MERCHANT	Dean	257	0	0	0	0	0	0	18	0	0	0	275	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
MERCHANT	Greg	752	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	3	765	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
MIGUEL	Manuel De	11	0	0	0	0	0	12	0	0	0	0	23	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
MILLER	Simon	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	6	30	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2
MOHEN	Frank	165	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	3	178	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
MOONEY	Patrick	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1
MOORE	Declan	188	0	0	17	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	206	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
MORAR	Sunil	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	19	0	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1
MORRIS	Darren	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	3	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1
MORRISON	Scott	469	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9	478	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	3
NAIR	Sreejith	0	0	0	0	1	13	0	0	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
NAQVI	Amaan	12	0	0	0	3	11	0	0	0	0	0	26	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	6
NAQVI	Kamal	20	0	0	0	0	1	10	0	0	01	0	41	0	0	0	0	2	10	0	0	0	14	26
NEWMAN	Daniel	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1
NEWSON	Graham	35	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		9	55	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
NEWTON	Robert	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1
NICHOLL	Kenneth	294	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 1	-	310	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	3
NICHOLSON	Kieran	204	0	0	0	19	0	0	0	0	0 1		235	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
NIELSEN	Alan	95	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	-		102	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1
O'DONNELL	Tristan	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	-	0	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	2
O'SHEA	Liam	57	0	0	0	0	2	13	0	0	0	0	72	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	0	0	0	7

OAKES	Warren	0	0	0	0	0	0	7	11	0	0	0	18	0	0	0	0	0	1	8	0	0	0	9
PAI	Kieran	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	23	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	2
PARKER	Andrew	138	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	16	154	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2
PARKES	Bradley	1022	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	16	9	1047	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	13	1	14
PEARCE	Glen	35	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	46	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	5
PEREIRA	Lachlan	17	2	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	34	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
PERRY	Alexander	35	0	0	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	0	49	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
PHAM	Blaze	39	0	0	0	0	20	1	0	0	0	0	60	0	0	0	0	10	0	0	0	0	0	10
PHELAN	Liam	0	0	0	0	0	2	18	0	0	0	0	20	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	4
PICKERING	Jack	20	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	37	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5
PRAT	Francesc Xavier	0	1	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
PULKER	Jonathan	0	0	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
RAHME	Matthew	156	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	18	0	174	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
RAMSAY	Andrew	750	0	0	0	0	0	20	0	0	0	0	770	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
REILLY	Stephen	563	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	8	581	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
RETFORD	Alan	501	0	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	531	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	4
RETFORD	Philip	1077	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	15	11	1103	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
RICHARD	Mark	460	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	16	0	13	491	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	10	0	8	19
RICHARD	Chris	31	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	17	0	0	49	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
RICKARD	Jackson	14	0	0	0	0	0	1	11	0	0	0	26	0	0	0	0	0	1	14	0	0	0	15
RUSHTON	Nicholas	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	6	0	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	8	0	9
RUSSELL	Stuart	333	0	0	0	0	0	0	18	0	0	0	351	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
RUSSELL	Declan	79	0	0	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	98	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
SANDERSON	Trevor	24	0	0	0	11	1	0	0	0	0	14	50	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	7	9
SANDERSON	Bruce	58	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	15	0	73	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
SANDHU	Kireth	93	9	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	118	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
SCHAEFER	Ryan	23	0	0	2	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	46	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
SCOTT	Aaron	197	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	22	219	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	3
SHAW	Billy	102	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	120	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
SHAW	Alex	98	0	1	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	112	0	0	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12
SHEHATA	Hani	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	14	10	46	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	0	5

SIAN	Теај	49	0	0	0	0	0	16	0	0	0	9	74	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
SIAN	Milan	22	0	0	0	0	17	2	0	0	0	0	41	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	3
SINGAL	Gaurav	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	16	0	36	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
SINGH	Mannu	87	0	0	0	2	17	1	0	0	0	0	107	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
SIQUEIRA	Roy	139	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	151	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1
SNEESBY	Mick	296	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	315	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
SOUTHGATE	Ryan	194	0	0	0	0	1	16	0	0	0	0	211	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
STEPHENS	James	161	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	178	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7
STUDD	Mark	474	0	0	0	0	1	16	1	0	0	23	515	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
SYMES	Graham	127	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	18	1	13	159	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	6
SYMES	Harry	29	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	19	2	0	51	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
TAN	Simon	20	0	0	0	0	0	2	19	0	0	0	41	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	0	0	0	14
TAYLOR	Duncan	100	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	19	0	15	134	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1
TAYLOR	Andrew	16	0	0	0	0	2	12	0	0	0	0	30	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
TAYLOR	Henry	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	8	18	0	0	27	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	5
THOMAS	Cody	0	11	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
THOMAS	Luca	13	0	0	0	0	0	2	17	0	0	0	32	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
тони	Robert	103	0	0	4	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	121	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
TOMS	Samuel	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	1	0	0	0	13	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	3
TOPFER	Matthew	163	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	3	178	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	2
TORRES	Ramiro	225	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9	234	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
TWEEDIE	Mick	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
UNGER	Tim	65	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	79	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
VERMA	Mukesh	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	15	0	31	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1
WARTON	Benjamin _	56	0	0	0	0	0	18	0	0	0	0	74	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WATSON	Evan	0	0	0	0	0	10	5	0	0	0	0	15	0	0	0	0	15	8	0	0	0	0	23
WATSON	Luke	0	0	0	2	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	21	0	0	2	22	0	0	0	0	0	0	24
WELSMAN	Luke	91	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	0	108	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10	0	0	10
WHITE	Nathaniel	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WHITTAKER	Cody	76	11	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	88	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
WHITTING	Ashton	50	0	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	67	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1

WICKENS	Ollie	0	0	1	2	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
WICKS	Justin	44	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		13	57	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2	
WILLIAMS	Craig	105	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	16	0	123	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	0	3	
WILLIAMS	Christopher	0	5	9	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	14	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	
WILLIAMS	Rhys	34	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	50	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	
WILLIAMSON	Carlin	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	17	0	0	0	30	0	0	0	0	0	0	11	0	0	0	11	
WILSON	Lachlan	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	9	17	0	0	27	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	5	0	0	6	
WILSON	Andrew	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	20	0	0	22	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	20	0	0	21	
WITCOMBE	Nik	84	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	5	101	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
WOODS	Steve	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
WOODS	Rory	12	0	0	0	19	2	0	0	0	0	0	33	0	0	0	2	1	0	0	0	0	0	3	
WRIGHT	Andy	323	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	342	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	
YOUNG	Blake	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	13	0	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	0	5	
YOUNG	Matthew	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	